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Disclaimer

Information contained in this document is based on available 

information at the time of writing.

Council or its officers accept no responsibility for any loss 

occasioned to any person acting or refraining from acting in 

reliance upon any material contained in this document.

Address and ABN

Community Address: PO Box 30, Kowanyama QLD 4892. Street 

Address: 30 Chapman Road, Kowanyama QLD 4892

Cairns Address: PO Box 769, Bungalow QLD 4870

Street Address: Level 1, 50 Scott Street, Bungalow QLD 4870

ABN: 86255216480
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Mayoral Foreward

I feel very proud as Mayor to deliver my first Annual 
Report on behalf of Council. 

I wish to acknowledge the Traditional Owners of 
Kowanyama, past, present and future and their 
strong continued presence on their Country, which 
includes the whole Shire area which Council are 
responsible for.

I would like to recognise what a difficult year it has 
again been for the community with the significant 
amount of Sorry Business and the restrictions 
that were felt by all community members due to 
COVID-19. Throughout these significant difficulties, 
the community has worked together to ensure the 
safety and wellbeing of all community members.
 
Our immediate focus as a new Council has been 
to fast track the major infrastructure projects within 
community including the incredible work being 
delivered by the roads crew including the use 
and support of local businesses; the workshop 
compound upgrade; the Canteen and Bistro 
refurbishment and upgrade; the Community 
Centre; the Aged Care Centre upgrade; the 
upgrade of the water and sewerage infrastructure; 
the design of the future Women’s Centre; the 
renewal of the contractors camp; and planning for 
the building of new social housing for community 
members and their families.
 
Additionally, there has been a strong focus on 
the financial stability of Council and we have 
achieved an audit report without qualification 
which is an outcome we should all be proud of.
 

Our future focus will be on how we together create 
a healthy, happy and sustainable community. 
We have begun this process by allocating 
portfolios to Councillors and creating forums of 
key stakeholders, service delivery agencies and 
community elders, to identify the priority outcomes 
for community in a range of areas such as Health, 
Housing, Law and Order, Education, Environment 
and Culture.
 
We will also be focussed on creating employment, 
business-opportunities and greater efficiency in all 
aspects of Council’s operations, as well as creating 
our leaders for the future from our young people.
 
We have made a great start on these challenges 
and I look forward to working with all of you to 
create a better Kowanyama in the future.

Cr. Robbie Sands
Mayor
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I wish to acknowledge the great work undertaken 
by the previous and new Councils during the 
year in ensuring a strong focus was maintained 
on providing additional roads and building 
infrastructure for the benefit of the whole of 
community. This is my second Annual Report 
and I have really enjoyed the opportunity and 
privilege of working within community to provide 
better facilities and services for all members of the 
Community.

We made the decision this year to undertake the 
repair and maintenance of all non-sealed roads 
work ourselves and our all Indigenous roads crew 
has delivered roads work of the highest quality 
and was recognised as the first Council to deliver 
on our roads program in QLD. As a result, we have 
received widespread recognition from various 
levels of government for our performance. In 
addition, we have also focused on supporting local 
businesses throughout the roads program.

Under Council’s guidance, we currently have 
a strong focus on delivering a huge $20m + 
infrastructure and roads program with the focus on 
improving the facilities and services being provided 
to community. Following on from the construction 
of the new airport terminal and the completion 
of the Men’s Centre, you will all be able to see 
the breadth of new building activity around the 
township as well as the repair work for vital facilities 
such as the community pool. 

As the Mayor has outlined, we also have a 
strong focus on the future and future revenue 
sources, and in doing so we have purchased 
the concrete batching plant, have received 
significant grant monies for establishing eco-
tourism and birdwatching activities on Council 
lands in partnership with the Traditional Owners, 
are focusing on the carbon farming program and 
the Courts have awarded all of the remaining 
assets of the Kowanyama Cattle Company to the 
Council so that it can continue to operate for the 
benefit of Traditional Owners, their families and the 
community. The future cattle company will operate 
with all of the protections of the Local Government 
Act and Regulations to avoid the problems of the 
previous operating model.

The opportunities and benefits offered by the 
cattle company are immense and will provide 
widespread employment and training activities, 
significant health and activity programs for all 
community and age groups, programs for school 
kids, fresh meat properly processed, better 
protection of country, wetlands and sacred 
sites, and with profits going to the priorities set by 
the local Traditional Owners such as important 
community programs and in particular building 
infrastructure on Traditional Lands.

Finally, we are starting the process of improving 
the efficiency of Council by focusing on each 
of the business and service delivery areas and 
investing in them and our employees. There will be 
a strong emphasis on identifying, employing, and 
training our local young people and developing 
them into our leaders of the future. The Rangers 
are an excellent example of this where the 
Council has recently purchased a number of new 
vehicles, repaired existing vehicles, invested in new 
equipment, are upgrading facilities, employing 
keen young locals and renewing the boat fleet to 
ensure the Rangers can patrol our waters against 
illegal fishing activities. 

This is the type of activity and approach you will 
see in every area of Council operations.      

Gary Uhlmann
Chief Executive Officer

 

Message from CEO
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This report has four main sections:
• Section One - Our Council and Country.  An 

overview of Kowanyama Aboriginal Shire 
Council’s history, geography, governance 
structure and aspirations

• Section Two - Review of Kowanyama Aboriginal 
Shire Council’s Operational Performance

• Section Three - Additional reporting 
requirements in accordance with the Local 
Government Act 2009 and Local Government 
Regulation 2012

• Section Four - Review of Kowanyama Aboriginal 
Shire Council’s Financial Performance including 
the Community Financial Report and Certified 
Financial Statements

Structure of the Annual Report
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Our Council 
and Country

1
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The Kowanyama Aboriginal Shire Council 

lies 25 km (as the crow flies) from the east 

coast of the Gulf of Carpentaria in the 

south-western region of the Cape York 

Peninsula, and 600 km northwest of Cairns.  

The total area equals approximately 4,120 

square kilometres.  The community has a 

population of approximately 1200 people.

The community is based on the banks of 

Magnificent Creek, which joins the South 

Mitchell River, which in turn forms part of 

the Mitchell River Delta.  Road access is 

only available four to five months of the 

year in the dry season. Weekday flights to 

and from Cairns service the community 

throughout the year.

Kowanyama Geography
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Our Nature and Environment
Kowanyama has a rich abundance of nature and 
wildlife.  Kowanyama consists mainly of wetlands 
and delta mangroves in the north, extending to 
forest country of the central peninsula.  These 
unique natural environments are home to a vast 
array of bird and animal species.

Community History
In 1903 the Queensland Government declared the 
Mitchell River an Aboriginal Reserve for the benefit 
of the Aboriginal peoples of the State.  In 1905 the 
Anglican Trubanamen Mission was established 
inland on Topsy Creek - this is now known as the old 
mission.

Aboriginal peoples of the region were gradually 
drawn from their ancestral lands into the mission 
settlement.

In 1916 the headquarters of the Anglican Mission 
moved to Kowanyama and formed the Mitchell 
River Mission and the Trubanamen site was 
abandoned.

Some peoples continued to occupy their 
traditional lands, moving into Kowanyama as late 
as the 1940s.

In 1964 a cyclone destroyed the mission, however 
the Queensland government funded its rebuilding.
In 1967 the Anglican church were no longer able 
to sustain their activities in the area as a Church 
Mission and the Department of Aboriginal and 
Islander Affairs took over the administration of the 
Mitchell River Mission and Reserve.

In 1987 the State transferred control to the 
Kowanyama Aboriginal Shire Council via a Deed of 
Grant in Trust (DOGIT).

Kowanyama is now one of the largest communities 
in Cape York with approximately 1200 residents.
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Culture
Kowanyama means “place of many waters” in the 
Yir Yoront language. The Indigenous inhabitants are 
the direct descendants of Aboriginal groups who 
inhabited the Lower Mitchell and Alice Rivers and 
neighbouring areas. The community includes the 
Kokoberra, Yir Yoront (or Kokomnjen) and Kunjen 
clans.

Kowanyama’s Aboriginal people continue to 
identify strongly with their ancestral countries 
and with the languages, stories, songs, dances, 
and histories associated with those countries. 
Language groups associated with countries in the 
Kowanyama region are Yir Yoront, Yirrk Thangalkl, 
Koko Bera, Uw Oykangand, and Olkola.

Council Services
The Kowanyama Aboriginal Shire Council is 
responsible for local government services such 
as road construction and maintenance, water 
infrastructure, sewerage infrastructure and 
maintenance, environmental health, and parks & 
gardens.

In addition to these primary functions Council also 
provides the following services and facilities:

• Enterprises:
o Bakery
o Blue Cafe
o Vehicle Workshop
o Post Office and Bank
o Batching Plant
o Residential and Commercial Rentals
o Training Centre Offices
o Airport
o Centrelink Agency

(L-R) Paddy Yam, Craig Goggleye, Craig Goggle JNR.
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• Housing
• Local radio station
• Operation and management of the Purchasing 

Store
• Management of leasehold cattle properties 

(Oriners and Sefton), including Carbon Farming
• Operation and management of the Aged Care 

Centre
• Operation and management of the Child Care 

Centre and Play Group
• Operation and management of the Land & 

Natural Resources Office
• Aboriginal Community Police Officers, in 

collaboration with Queensland Police Service
• Sport & Recreation programs and services, 

including those for young people
• Swimming Pool
• Women’s Shelter
• Women’s and Men’s Groups
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VISION
Our Goal

Council’s Vision and Mission Statement

To build a healthy and safe community, with strong 
economic opportunities and wellbeing services, 
through innovation and collaboration.”
Mission – How we will achieve our goal:

Mission
How we will achieve our goal
To deliver best practice council services, and work 
with stakeholders to ensure our community members 
receive first rate services, with a focus on business 
development, culture, education and wellbeing.”

“

“
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 OUR VALUES

Accountability
Our decision making is transparent, fair and in the best interest of the whole 
community

Respect
We listen to all views and communicate with our community members, 
stakeholders and employees with respect and professionalism

Diversity and Equality
We embrace diversity and treat all people with respect, and fairness, no matter 
their gender, age, sexual orientation, race or disability

Innovation
We embrace future technologies and tools and look for new solutions for the 
benefit of our community

Maintaining Culture
We embrace our culture and preserve and strengthen it for future generations

Communication
We understand the importance of clear, regular communication and we will 
communicate council decisions, projects and activities with our employees, 
community members and stakeholders

Partnership
We will work together with our fellow local councils, state and federal government 
and community groups and services

Excellence
We will strive to provide the best in everything we do
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Kowanyama Aboriginal Shire Council has an 
elected body of five Councillors, with specific 
powers, responsibilities and duties set out in the 
Local Government Act 2009 (the Act).
Elections for the Mayor and Councillors are 
undertaken every four years, with the last election 
held on Saturday 28 March 2020. 

Cr. Robbie Sands - Mayor
Mayor Robbie Sands brings several years of 
experience working within the Kowanyama 
Aboriginal Shire Council, under the Elders who 
guided it through its infancy. Employed by the 
Council in a number of roles since 1992, Mayor 
Sands worked his way up to the position of Deputy 
Chief Executive Officer, which he held for seven 
years.

He continues to represent the community through 
a number of committees and clubs, including 
the Sports and Recreation Association and the 
Kowanyama Rodeo committee.   Mayor Sands 
says he has learnt a great deal from working with 
these groups and that their guidance, support and 
philosophies provide the basis for his objectives 
and goals.

Cr. Cameron Josiah – Deputy Mayor
Deputy Mayor Cameron Josiah brings a wealth of 
experience, guidance and drive to his current role 
in Kowanyama Aboriginal Shire Council.   Born in 
Cairns and growing up in Kowanyama, Cameron 
finished high school in 2005 and landed a coveted 
role as an AFL development officer, a position 
which took him throughout the Cape York region 
and to Brisbane, Sydney and Melbourne.
It was his early passion for team sports that saw 
Cameron excel in providing much-needed 
leadership and support for young players and their 
respective careers. Cameron also led a number of 
AusKick programs throughout the Cape York and 
Cairns region, encouraging the youth to pursue 
their passions and dreams.

Deputy Mayor Cameron Josiah comes from a 
long lineage of members of Council, with his 
father and grandparents serving as chairpersons 
in Kowanyama. His partner Territa Dick was also 
a Deputy Mayor for Kowanyama Aboriginal Shire 
Council. After working as Kowanyama Aboriginal 
Shire Council’s Sports and Recreation Officer for a 
number of years, he decided to run as Councillor in 
2019 and was elected as Deputy Mayor in 2020.
He is incredibly passionate about education 
opportunities for the young people of Kowanyama, 
placing a strong emphasis on the completion 
of school studies or providing traineeships or 
apprenticeships for students.   Deputy Mayor 
Cameron Josiah also wants to further educate 
parents on the different career pathways available 
to their children.

Elected Members
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He says he looks forward to a big change in 
governance across Kowanyama and hopes his 
strategic goals and vision can be met with a 
positive reception from the local community.   “I 
have a passion and drive to see many positive 
changes happen in our community and am 
enthusiastic to help overcome the issues we face,” 
Mr Josiah says.   “We are looking to make things 
work where they haven’t before and I want to 
continue implementing programs that allow all of 
our residents to have various opportunities and live 
happy and healthy lives.”

Cr. Elroy Josiah
Cr Josiah was born in Kowanyama and started 
out his career in Council in infrastructure and main 
roads, contributing to much of the transportation 
and road network throughout the local region. 
Many of the roads you see travelling into and 
through Kowanyama were helped built by Cr 
Josiah, and his experience took him all the way 
to Hughenden in outback Queensland, where he 
worked for Flinders Regional Council.

Cr Josiah also worked at the Sports and 
Recreations Association), where he cemented 
strong mentoring relationships with families in the 
area. It was here being a well-known and much-
loved member of the community that many 
suggested he should run for Council.

He is particularly passionate about assisting in the 
development of the Cattle Company enterprise 
(which is soon to come back to Council).  Cr Josiah 
holds a Cert.4 in stockyard and cattle work and 
is keen on supporting local jobs for young people 
and launching programs to give those a leg up in 
securing ongoing employment and experience.
With his goals firmly rooted in helping young people 
achieve their aspirations through employment 
initiatives, social activities and job opportunities, 
he also has objectives to renovate and expand his 
local church, improving roads and creating equal 
opportunity for the residents of Kowanyama.
Councillor Josiah says he wants young people 
of Kowanyama to have access to the same 
opportunities as he did.  “I was fortunate enough 
to be able to explore new places outside of 
Kowanyama and through work experience and a 
variety of roles, I was gifted a unique and broad-
ranging skillset” Cr Josiah says.  “I’d like to think I’m 
an important role model for my community and 
strive to give people the tools to succeed in their 
chosen field.”
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Cr. Teddy Bernard
Councillor Teddy Bernard is a Kunjen/Kokoberra/
Kokomenjen man from Kowanyama and the proud 
father of two.

He grew up in Kowanyama, where he attended 
the State School from pre-school to year 10, before 
completing years 11-12 at Atherton State High 
School.

In his youth, Councillor Bernard represented 
Australia in track and field as part of the 1996 Los 
Angeles Indigenous Athletics Elite (IAE) program.
A graduate of the Cape York Leaders program 
between 2009 and 2011, Councillor Bernard has 
been a highly active advocate for Native Title 
programs for the past 18 years and is a member 
of the Board of Directors at the Abm Elgoring 
Ambung Aboriginal Corporation (Kowanyama 
PBC). The PBC acts as an agent for the Native Title 
rights and interests of the Kowanyama People in 
south-west Cape York. 

Cr Bernard also participated in the Diplomacy 
Training Program through the University of NSW. This 
led to engagements in an Oxfam Australia youth 
delegation with the United Nations to East Timor in 
2011.

Previously a Councillor from 2012-2016, Councillor 
Bernard returns to Council with years of experience 
behind him. His goals for his present term in office 
include education, training and culture.
 

Cr. Richard Stafford
No Bio available.
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Performance
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Chief Executive Officer
Gary Uhlmann

Internal Audit
Disaster

Management

Office Manager, 
EA to the CEO and Mayor

Sherie Nikolai

Office of the CEO

Child Care
Aged Care

Community Policing
Centrelink

Womens and Children’s Services
Men’s Services

Community Housing and Tenancy
RIBS

Community Events and Engagement
Sports and Recreation
Multipurpose Centre

Cultural Heritage
Cultural Advice

Post Office
Disaster Management Coordination

Payroll
Training and Development

Recruitment
Appraisals

Mentoring and Capacity building
Traineeships

Hosted Placements
Work Health and Safety

Staff Tenancy Management

Cairns Ofice Administration
Management Accounting

Creditors
Debtors

External Audit
Travel Bookings

Financial Statements
Fees and Charges

Budget
Insurance

Purchasing
Enterprise: Stores, Bakery

Audit Committee
Internal Audit Coordination

Strategy, Operational 
and Corporate Plans

Policy and Procedures
Legal and Governance

Government Liaison & Briefings
IT and Website

Risk Management
Delegations Register

Corporate Branding and Publications
Leases

Records Management
Social Media

Media Releases
Complaints Management

Food Licensing Goverance

Building (New and R&M)
Electrician’Carpentry

Roads and Works
Essential Services

Environmental Health
Carbon Farming
Batching Plant

Assets Management
Vehicle Workshop

Development Applications
Lands Office

Corporate Accommmodation Repairs
Airport

Plants and Assets
Fleet Management

Animal Management

Executive Manager 
Community Services

Kevin Bell

Executive Manager 
Human Resource

Chris Delaney

Executive Manager 
Finance

Andrew Hay

Executive Manager 
Governance and Operations

Katherine Wiggins

Executive Manager 
Roads, Infrastructure & 

Essential Services
Jacqui Cresswell

Executive Team and Council Meetings
Mayor and CEO Diary

Mayor and CEO Traval and Accommodation
Complaints Register
Resolutions Register

Kowanyama Office Administration
Accommodation Bookings

Car Hire
Action Items

Funding Applications and Acquittals
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Council continues to work towards the completion 
of our five year Corporate Plan.   Our Corporate 
Plan objectives are:

1. Economic Development 

2. Environment 

3. Arts, Culture and Recreation 

4. Health, Well-being and Social Justice 

5. Education and Capacity Building 

6. Community Cohesiveness 

7. Governance and Performance 

8. Disaster Management 

9. Infrastructure Development 

Strategic Achievements
We work towards the completion of our five-year 
Corporate Plan through the implementation of our 
annual Operational Plan goals.   A summary of our 
current achievements towards are strategic goals 
are listed in the section “Operational Plan update”
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Governance and Operations
Governance and Operations is responsible for a 
range of projects across Council, including Legal, 
Website, Publications, Policies & Procedures, 
Information, Technology & Communication, Audit 
& Risk Committee, and Internal Audit and Strategy.
The past year has seen the role of Governance 
and Operations develop to also now incorporate 
additional duties including processing infrastructure 
and building applications and environmental 
health needs.

The past year has also been a year of growth.  
We now have an additional two team members, 
Judy Austin - Project Officer Governance and 
Operations, and Matt Fox - Information Systems 
& Records Management Officer.   Judy and Matt 
have been a great asset to the Department and to 
Council.

Over the next year we look forward to progressing 
key projects including records management, 
land management requirements and further 
enhancement of policies and procedures across 
council.

Katherine Wiggins

Executive Manager Government and Operations

Departmental Updates

(L-R) Francine Gilbert, Chrissy Aidan, JT, Boyd Aidan, Priscilla Major, Hazel Barr, Michael Mitchell.
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Finance
The 2019-2020 financial year has seen the Council 
achieving a second unqualified audit opinion after 
many years of qualified financial statements.

This is a major outcome for the Council and I thank 
Council for its contributions to achieving this. 
In the financial statements preparation process, the 
Council received a green light for year-end close 
process and red light for timeliness and red light for 
quality due to non-significant adjustments around 
the fixed assets register due to the full valuation 
undertaken in 2019-2020.

Capitalising on this achievement, we list our next 
steps to enhance the Council’s long-term financial 
sustainability by:- 

1. Implementing long term asset management 
plan with a view to building a sustainable asset 
base to meet service delivery requirements of 
the community,

2. Strengthen internal controls and procedures 
across all accounting areas (cash handling, 
stock management, procurement, sales, 
banking and etc.) to mitigate compliance risks,

3. Ensuring accountability and transparency to all 
internal and external stakeholders,

4. Exploring growth opportunities for the Council’s 
enterprising businesses specifically loss making 
undertakings,

5. Consistently monitoring both revenue and 
expenditure against budgets and benchmarks 
at program/functional levels to ensure delivery 
of grant funded programs

6. Greater reporting to make Council agile to 
changing conditions as highlighted during 
COVID19. 

Some of the major finance projects successfully 
completed during 2019-20 include:-

1. Full Asset Valuation for 2019-2020 to assist in the 
formulation of the Asset Management Plans and 
long term forecasts.

2. Introduction of the new Accounting standards 
around Revenue & leases.

3. Resolution of old or outstanding audit 
deficiencies for past years.

4. Development of professional finance staff.

With many challenges ahead, I look forward to 
working with the finance team and other staff 
members across the organisation to make 2020/21 
another better financial year for the Council and 
the Community.

Andrew Hay

Executive Manager - Finance
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Community Services
The Community Services team has worked 
extremely hard over the past 12 months to work
with community members, stakeholders and 
departments to identify and build relevant fit
for purpose social infrastructure that allows the 
functions, programs and services to
enhance all community members health, 
happiness, wellbeing and links to pride and culture
on traditional lands.

This includes

• Renovations to the Kowanyama Multi-Purpose 
Centre to ensure the facility is maintained to 
standard and in working order for community 
events/programs and disasters;

• Brand new shade sails at the Kowanyama pool;
• Renovations to the aged care office space and 

new toilet blocks, including new external fences, 
driveways and covered car park, new outdoor 
gazebo area for outdoor programs and leisure;

• Kowanyama Men’s centre completion of stage 
1 works and programs being delivered from 
centre;

• Design completion of staged work for the 
Kowanyama Womens Centre with works starting 
this year to enrich services to the Kowanyama 
women and children;

• Purchase of the brand new 4wd bus 22 seater 
Toyota coaster that has enables community 
to get out on country and engage in fulfilling 
cultural and recreational activities; and

• Renovations of the Community centre with a 
grand opening later this year which see a fully 
renovated fit for purpose space that will be able 
to facilitate all kinds of programs services and 
community events for all community members.

The team will continue to drive quality programs to 
the highest possible standards to meet
the needs of the community.

Kevin Bell

Executive Manager Community Services  

(L-R) Hazel Barr, Chrissy Aidan, Francine Gilbert, Priscilla Major (sitting).
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Workforce Representation Females Males

Fulltime 65 47% 18 28% 47 72%

Part time 28 20% 18 64% 10 36%

Casuals 46 33% 26 57% 20 43%

Total 139 100% 62 45% 77 55%

Human Resources
Human Resources is working with Council to ensure 
a performance based culture is developed and 
maintained in all work areas.  This will be achieved 
with consistent messaging at all levels and with 
appropriate training and succession planning.  
2020 has been a challenging year with COVID-19 
impacting recruitment and the delivery of training 
across Council.  However new initiatives to deliver 
training via remote technology will enable greater 
access to a wider range of training opportunities.
As at 30 June 2020, Council employed 139 
employees, of which 80% identified as Aboriginal 
and /or Torres Strait Islander.

Key achievements include:
Training packages delivered to staff
• Online Fraud Awareness
• Certificate III Agriculture
• 4wd Training
• Plant and Equipment 
• Authorised Officers
• First Aid and CPR
• Diploma of Local Government
• Water Industry Training
• Four apprentices/trainees engaged with four 

more requested for the next financial year

Chris Delaney

Executive Manager Human Resources

 

(L-R) Doreen Yam, Cassie Victor, Hazel Barr.

Annual Turnover was 29%

Workforce Composition:
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Roads, Infrastructure and Essential Services
The Infrastructure area has had another busy and 
exciting year.  

This year saw the completion of the new, Design 
Award for Public Buildings winning, airport terminal 
which has been well received by community and 
stakeholders alike.

The roads area this year saw, for the first time, 
Council’s fully indigenous road crew, along with 
local indigenous contractors, complete the whole 
yearly road program ahead of schedule.  

This included TIDS/ATSI, R2R, LRCI and DRFA 
funded projects totalling nearly $10million.  This 
is a major feat for the Kowanyama Council with 
monies generated from these programs staying in 
community for the first time rather than employing 
external contractors.  This has enabled several 
community members to be trained on heavy plant 
operation in readiness for next year’s program. 

Kowanyama Aboriginal Shire Council are also 
pleased to be the first Council, Queensland 

wide, to have completed all their works ahead 
of schedule. Council thanks the road crew and 
contractors for their commitment to these projects 
and look forward to continuing this next year.
Council has been fortunate to receive funding 
for a number of projects including construction 
of a family bistro during canteen renovation 
works, construction of a women’s meeting place 
alongside the women’s  shelter, refurbishment of 
the contractor’s camp and workshop compound, 
mains power and water connection to the men’s 
shed, construction of 3 duplexes (2 for community 
housing and 1 for staff housing) and refurbishment 
works at the Aged Care centre.

The Building Services area continue to successfully 
manage maintenance and upgrade works for 
QBuild with over 680 maintenance jobs completed, 
84 major and 33 minor upgrades of community 
housing completed during the 19/20 financial year.

Jacqui Cresswell

Executive Manager Roads, Infrastructure, 

and Essential Services

(L-R) Simon Luke, Clive Gilbert, Malcolm Possum, Lenton Lawrence, Rodrick Daniel, James Gilbert, Michael Yam.
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5 Year Corporate Plan Area Ref Area Focus Objective Key Performance Indicators (KPI) % Complete

 7 Governance and 
Performance

1 Office of the CEO Budget Ensure the Office of the CEO department 
operates in line within the allocated budget.

Each quarter actual expenditure and revenue to match budgeted. 70%

 7 Governance and 
Performance

2 Office of the CEO Performance - CEO CEO Key Performance Indicators Achievement of CEOs Key Performance Indicators within specified timeframes

 7 Governance and 
Performance

3 Office of the CEO Performance - 
Employees

High-quality communication and 
performance of staff

• Executive Team meetings, with Agendas, Minutes and Action Items, are held each month
• Summary of Executive Team Meeting discussions and key monthly activity provided to all staff and Council in monthly 

email and notice board updates

70%

1 Economic Development 4 Office of the CEO Local Economy Create a productive environment to 
encourage the growth of the local economy

Work with community groups, and Local, State and Federal government departments to provide an environment to grow 
local business and attract private investment, including: 

• A healthy and trained workforce
• High-speed telecommunications
• A safe working environment
• Beautification of community spaces
• High-quality roads
• Frequent, high-quality cost effective air services 
• Not to compete with local service providers when business opportunities arise

70%

 6 Governance and 
Performance

5 Office of the CEO Customer Service Provide user-friendly, respectful and proactive 
customer service delivery

• Generate and implement complaints management process
• Customers are acknowledged within 2 minutes from arriving at reception
• Telephones are picked up within 7 rings
• Out of Office messages, containing accurate contact information, are used
• Telephone answer machine messages are up to date
• Telephone message banks are accessible
• All external emails are acknowledged within 48 hours

70%

2 Environment 6 Office of the CEO Carbon Footprint Protecting the land for future generations • Reduce the carbon footprint of Council - including reduction of carbon omissions, waste, plastic, plus the utilisation of 
local products and services

• Utilisation of renewal energies - such as solar panels

5%

1 Economic Development 7 Office of the CEO Enterprise 
accommodation

Manage enterprise buildings to provide clean, 
safe and comfortable accommodation for 
stakeholders and visitors

• Increase the supply of available, high-quality accommodation
• Receive, allocate and program repairs
• Maintain up to date inventories
• Ensure houses are equipped with furniture, fittings and equipment
• Coordinate arrivals, departures and payments
• Ensure accommodation is clean
• Provision of high-quality customer service
• Ensure accommodation creates profit, inline or exceeding budget expectations

60%

Operational Plan Update
The following Operational Plan provides a self-assessment of Council’s progress:
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5 Year Corporate Plan Area Ref Area Focus Objective Key Performance Indicators (KPI) % Complete

7 Governance and Performance 8 Office of the CEO Performance Project approvals and feasibility studies With the Executive Manager Infrastructure, Works and Projects develop systems for the assessment of projects, and 
endorsement at Council level prior to commencement

70%

8 Disaster Management 9 Office of the CEO Disaster Management Disaster Management Planning • Review Disaster Management Plan, including Airport emergency plan
• Attendance of Local Disaster Management Group

100%

7 Governance and Performance 71 Office of the CEO Funding Applications 
and Acquittals

Sustainable finances to support operations • Submission of high-quality funding applications in line with Council’s budget and operational plan
• Timely completion of funding acquittals
• Ensuring grant funding is expended as per the funding agreements

75%

Office of the CEO - Department Average 66%

7 Governance and Performance 10 Community Services Budget Ensure the Community Services department 
operates in line within the allocated budget.

Each quarter actual expenditure and revenue to match budgeted. 60%

4 Health, Well-being and Social 
Justice

11 Community Services Critical Mental Health Improve the health outcomes of community 
members

1) Collaborate with community groups, and Local, State and Federal government departments to improve access to 
health services and close the gap in health outcomes, in particular: 
 
• Suicide prevention and promotion of social and emotional well-being, including: 
     * Indigenous Mental Health First Aid training 
     * increasing locally based experienced workforce for mental health,  social and emotional well-being, substance 
abuse and intellectual disability services and programs 
     * provision of “healing on country” programs 
     * Men’s, women’s and young people’s services 
     * Supporting the number of local community members undertaking mental health training /diplomas / degrees 
 
2) Coordinate a strategic approach, driven by community, across all groups and services, to improve health outcomes 
and reduce gaps and duplication in service delivery, whilst obtaining value for money.  The strategic approach would 
include: 
 
• Mental health, social and emotional-well being 
• Criminal justice interventions using evidence based approaches (including the Justice Reinvestment and diversionary 
models) 
• Housing 
• Education 
• Disability 
• Local economy

50%

4 Health, Well-being and Social 
Justice

12 Community Services Health - Preventative 
and Support

Women’s, Men’s and Young people’s support 
groups

Work with community groups, and Local, State and Federal government departments to develop mental health, well-
being, family violence and support services, including: 

• Women’s group space and activities
• Men’s shed
• Young people’s group space and activities
• Traditional hunting, gathering, cooking, art, song, music, basket weaving, wax collection, language, creating traditional 

artefacts, bush medicine and sports - harnessing the knowledge of elders

75%

4 Health, Well-being and Social 
Justice

13 Community Services Community 
Connections

Men and Women’s Shed and Hub Implement and monitor the Men’s Shed and Women’s space service to ensure service delivery in line with funding 
agreements

55%
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5 Year Corporate Plan Area Ref Area Focus Objective Key Performance Indicators (KPI) % Complete

4 Health, Well-being and Social 
Justice

14 Community Services Health - Population Promote evidence based strategies to 
improve community health promotion 
(preventive)

Work with community groups, and Local, State and Federal government departments to promote evidence based health 
promotion programs and service provision for all community members, including: 
 
• Nutrition 
• Exercise 
• Sexual health 
• Diabetes 
• Smoking 
• Dental

50%

4 Health, Well-being and Social 
Justice

15 Community Services Justice Promote evidence based strategies to reduce 
criminal offending

Collaborate with community groups, and Local, State and Federal government departments to promote evidence based 
criminal justice programs for community members, to reduce offending and improve safety, including: 

• Justice reinvestment models (redirecting money spent on prisons to community-based initiatives)
• Pre and post custodial sentence programs (to divert people from the criminal justice system to mental health, drug & 

alcohol and family violence programs, and support reintegration after release from custody)
• Programs for young people to reduce offending behaviours (including school holiday programs, and healing on country 

programs)
• Gender appropriate programs to  reduce offending behaviours and improve social and emotional well-being
• Indigenous Mental Health First Aid
• Mental Health, social and emotional well-being, substance abuse and intellectual disability services
• Boarding school support programs (for Council to visit boarders and provide guidance and support)
• Driver licensing programs
• Town planning in line with situational crime prevention best practice (such as having well lit pathways and community 

areas)

45%

2 Environment 16 Community Services Environment Protect the Kowanyama environment and 
reduce the impact of plastic

• Working with Infrastructure, Works and Projects and community groups, reduce the amount of plastic being released 
in to the Kowanyama environment and water ways - including programs to reduce the use of plastic bags and the 
release of helium balloons. 

• Coordinate volunteer “clean-up” activities.

75%

2 Environment 17 Community Services Community 
Environment

Promote beautification of community spaces 
and a “tidy town”

Collaborate with community groups, and Local, State and Federal government departments to encourage local 
community pride: 

• Promote local artists to provide community artworks on buildings and structures
• Reduce rubbish in public spaces
• Promote plants in public spaces
• Garden and “tidy town” awards
• Community murals and electric poles and rubbish bins artwork
• Removal of weeds from fencing

30%

4 Health, Well-being and Social 
Justice

18 Community Services Health and enterprise Community Gardens • Collaborate  with community groups, and Local, State and Federal government departments to create and maintain 
community gardens to increase local food production

• Work with local retailers for the supply of local foods in stores
• Work with local schools to increase knowledge of nutrition, fresh and local produce.

50%

4 Health, Well-being and Social 
Justice

19 Community Services Childcare Provision of high-quality service provision in line 
with funding agreement

Collaborate with child care providers to provide high-quality, accessible and culturally appropriate services. 85%

5 Education and Capacity 
Building

20 Community Services Education Harness and celebrate  local knowledge, 
culture and heritage, support our young 
people to gain the best education.

• Development and implementation of programs to support capturing and recording local knowledge and language
• Collaborate with schools to celebrate local knowledge
• Collaborate with schools to reduce the number of  young people being excluded from schools
• Collaborate with schools to increase the school attendance, by implementing programs and services such as breakfast 

clubs and transport services

65%
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5 Year Corporate Plan Area Ref Area Focus Objective Key Performance Indicators (KPI) % Complete

1 Economic Development 21 Community Services Employment Increase community capacity building With Human Resources, and Infrastructure, Works and Projects, collaborate with job employment service providers to: 

• Provide training to job seekers in community (with essential training in literacy, numeracy and basic computer skills)
• Utilise job seekers in Council projects

50%

4 Health, Well-being and Social 
Justice

22 Community Services Centrelink Provision of Centrelink agency services Provide a high-quality service in line with funding agreement. 100%

4 Health, Well-being and Social 
Justice

23 Community Services Aged Care Provide high-quality support to Aged Care 
clients

Provision of care in accordance with Aged Care  guidelines and regulation 
 
Coordination of:
• Respite care
• Allied health and therapy
• Personal Care
• Social Support
• Home medications
• Food services - including the promotion of local traditional foods, fresh  and nutritious foods
• Transport 

100%

4 Health, Well-being and Social 
Justice

24 Community Services Disability Preparation for National Disability Insurance 
Scheme (NDIS)

Review the impact of the NDIS to disability services and implement service adjustments as required 60%

4 Health, Well-being and Social 
Justice

25 Community Services Housing Tenancy management • Up to date tenancy agreements - community members
• Advocate for sufficient community housing to reduce overcrowding 

100%

7 Governance and Performance 26 Community Services Land Advocate for the resolution of Land Holding 
Act (Katter) leases

• Coordination of community meetings with Katter leases as an agenda item
• Liaison with Government stakeholders to advocate for community needs

50%

4 Health, Well-being and Social 
Justice

27 Community Services Sports and Recreation Support of Sports and Recreation • Active participation in Sports and Recreation Committee
• Working with department of Infrastructure Works and Projects, advocate for sporting facilities, and infrastructure to 

encourage healthy activities (walking and cycling)

100%

4 Health, Well-being and Social 
Justice

28 Community Services Multi Purpose Centre Support of Sports and Recreation and Youth 
Engagement

• Work with the Grants and Business Development Manager to identify funding for MPC activities
• Work with other community stakeholders to implement activities for young people, including breakfast and homework 

clubs and school holiday programs.

80%

3 Arts, Culture and Recreation 29 Community Services  Community Radio Provision of high-quality service provision in line 
with funding agreement

• Community member interviews
• Community news reporting
• Promotion of local culture
• Promotion of local music
• Promotion of local languages
• Sponsorship and advertising opportunities

55%
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5 Year Corporate Plan Area Ref Area Focus Objective Key Performance Indicators (KPI) % Complete

6 Community Cohesiveness 30 Community Services Stakeholders Community stakeholder relationship building • Four community meetings held each year
• Attendance at relevant community group meetings

50%

Community Services - Department Average 66%

7 Governance and Performance 31 Finance Budget Ensure the Finance department operates in 
line within the allocated budget.

Each quarter actual expenditure and revenue to match budgeted. 75%

7 Governance and Performance 32 Finance Assets Responsible management of assets to support 
long-term financial sustainability

Generation, implementation and monitoring of Asset Management Plan 90%

7 Governance and Performance 33 Finance Assets Revaluation and condition assessment of 
assets

• Appointment of valuer
• Asset condition assessments reviewed by Audit and Risk Committee
• Asset register updated 

60%

7 Governance and Performance 34 Finance Audit External Audit “Green-Light” from Queensland Audit Office (both timeliness and quality) 20%

7 Governance and Performance 35 Finance Budget and Financial 
Statements

Strengthen Council’s long term financial 
planning

• Preparation of 2017/2018 Financial Statements
• Endorsement of original budget in line with Operational Plan objectives by 30 August
• Budget review by 31  December 2018
• Monitoring of Departmental Budgets and communication of risks with managers

50%

7 Governance and Performance 36 Finance Debt Recovery Manage debtors through lawful, ethical and 
culturally sensitive approaches

• Development and implementation of Debt Recovery Policy
• Writing off bad-debts

50%

7 Governance and Performance 37 Finance Finance systems Ensure finance systems meet Council 
requirements

• Provision of staff training in Synergy soft 75%

7 Governance and Performance 38 Finance Insurance Active insurance policies to reduce risk to 
Council

Preparation, market appraisal, assessment and award  for 18/19 year 100%

7 Governance and Performance 39 Finance Procurement Review Preferred Supplier List Coordination of preferred supplier list with focus on increasing opportunities for local suppliers and workers and provision 
of high-quality, respectful service provision

100%
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5 Year Corporate Plan Area Ref Area Focus Objective Key Performance Indicators (KPI) % Complete

7 Governance and Performance 40 Finance Procurement Contract Management Development of contracts between Council’s and suppliers to ensure high-quality service provision to Council and 
community adherence to  Sound Contracting Principles as detailed in  Local Government Act 2009

50%

7 Governance and Performance 41 Finance Procurement Purchasing • Implement improved procedures for increased manager awareness and responsibility of departmental budgets, 
including clear policies and procedures and the use of visual explanations materials (flowcharts)

• Procurement of local and regional services and materials
• Ensuring the Purchasing Store is sufficiently stocked with appropriate profit margins and reporting systems

60%

Finance - Department Average 66%

7 Governance and Performance 42 Governance and Operations Budget Ensure the Corporate Governance 
department operates in line within the 
allocated budget.

Each quarter actual expenditure and revenue to match budgeted. 50%

7 Governance and Performance 43 Governance and Operations Publications Ensure the professional corporate branding 
and information provision to stakeholder 
groups to communicate Council’s vision, 
mission, values and progress.

• Annual Report to be endorsed by Council within one month of certified Financial Statements
• 2 Newsletters per year
• Social media

50%

7 Governance and Performance 44 Governance and Operations Advocacy Advocating Council’s  strategy objectives 
to Local, State and Federal government 
departments and relevant bodies (1)

Development of Key Issues and Advocacy Strategy  - detailing Council’s and community’s goals and values in: 

• Housing
• Health
• Justice
• Education
• Transport
• Infrastructure
• Aged care
• Disability
• Child Care
• Family Violence
• Tourism
• Telecommunications
• Local employment, with more stakeholder service providers living in community

70%

7 Governance and Performance 45 Governance and Operations Advocacy Advocating Council’s  strategy objectives 
to Local, State and Federal government 
departments and relevant bodies (2)

• Briefings on key issues provide to Councillors and Executive
• Attendance at key meetings and conferences with feedback to Councillors and the Executive
• Written and in person lobbying with  Local, State and Federal government departments and relevant bodies
• Responses to consultations to advocate Council’s strategy

70%

7 Governance and Performance 46 Governance and Operations Audit Compliance with Local Government Act 
2009 Audit Committee requirements and best 
practice

• Development of Annual Internal Audit Plan
• Completion of Internal Audit Plan 
• Audit and Risk Committee Meetings as per Audit and Risk Committee Charter

80%

4 Health, Well-being and Social 
Justice

47 Governance and Operations Justice Review of Alcohol Management Plan (AMP) • Advocate for a review of the AMP, including research into the short and long-term social, health and economic impacts 
of fining and charging community members

• Collaborate with community groups, and Local, State and Federal government departments to ensure the AMP meets 
the needs of community

60%
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5 Year Corporate Plan Area Ref Area Focus Objective Key Performance Indicators (KPI) % Complete

48 Governance and Operations Justice Review of Situational Crime Prevention needs Review community’s needs in Situational Crime Prevention including CCTV, and with the Grants and Business 
Development Manager, advocate for funding to meet needs

80%

7 Governance and Performance 49 Governance and Operations Compliance Policies and Procedures • Development and maintenance of Policies and Procedures Register
• Ensuring Policies and Procedures are maintained as per the Policies and Procedures Register
• Ensuring Policies and Procedures are in line with Council plans, strategies, best practice and current local government 

best practice and values.

100%

7 Governance and Performance 50 Governance and Operations Information, 
Technology and 
Communication (ITC)

Computer assets • Develop and maintain asset register for ITC equipment
• Coordinate the repair and purchasing of ITC hardware and software to meet the needs of staff within budget 

restrictions
• Ensure systems have appropriate virus and ransom wear protection

60%

7 Governance and Performance 51 Governance and Operations Legal Ensure Council operations are inline with 
applicable legislation

• Provision of advice to Council and Executive on Local Government Act 2009 and Regulation 2012 requirements
• Coordination of legal advice

100%

7 Governance and Performance 52 Governance and Operations Local Laws Adequate local laws • Review current local laws to ensure they are fit for purpose
• Development of a local law register
• Development of new of amended Local Laws as required

100%

7 Governance and Performance 53 Governance and Operations Performance Completion of Council action items and 
strategic plan deliverables

• Capturing, monitoring and completion of Council and committee action items
• Monitoring and reporting of Operational Plan and Corporate Plan deliverables and achievements

100%

7 Governance and Performance 54 Governance and Operations Public Affairs An informed Council and Executive • Distribution of relevant media articles to ensure Councillors and Executive are informed of relevant issues
• Development of briefings for Council and Executive on relevant issues applicable to Cape York, Indigenous Local 

Councils and Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander peoples. 

100%

7 Governance and Performance 55 Governance and Operations Publications Website • Website is compliant with Local Government legislation
• Website is user-friendly and reflects the brand of Council 

100%

7 Governance and Performance 56 Governance and Operations Records Management Ensure all documentation is stored in 
accordance with QLD legislation and best 
practice

• Implementation and monitoring of protocol to store correspondence
• Implementation and monitoring of enforcement of a protocol for the electronic filing of incoming and outgoing 

correspondence

20%

7 Governance and Performance 57 Governance and Operations Risk Register Responsible management of risks Generation, implementation and monitoring of Risk Register 50%
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5 Year Corporate Plan Area Ref Area Focus Objective Key Performance Indicators (KPI) % Complete

7 Governance and Performance 58 Governance and Operations Stakeholders Professional corporate branding  
Annual Report to be endorsed by Council within one month of certified Financial Statements 

100%

Governance and Operations - Department Average 76%

7 Governance and Performance 59 Human Resources Budget Ensure the Human Resources department 
operates in line within the allocated budget.

Each quarter actual expenditure and revenue to match budgeted. 100%

7 Governance and Performance 60 Human Resources Council Culture Communication and collaboration with 
employees

Promote a collaborative, positive work and corporate environment though development of key procedures, guidelines, 
staff briefings and team building activities.

100%

7 Governance and Performance 61 Human Resources Employee Capacity 
Building

A trained workforce and strong governance • Develop a training schedule and support employees to engage in training opportunities
• Develop and implement financial and governance training programs for staff to support financial literacy, budget 

management, fraud control and decision making
• In collaboration with the Finance team, develop and implement financial training programs to managers to support  

budget monitoring, purchasing, use of cost codes, budget development and fraud control.
• Provide training programs to managers to support their management of staff
• Implement capacity building programs to support staff progressing in Corporate Structure - such as acting 

arrangements, mentoring and shadowing.

100%

7 Governance and Performance 62 Human Resources Employee Health Promote employee health and well-being for 
a happy and productive workforce

Provision of evidence based health programs for staff, including: 
 
• Quit smoking support 
• Mental health, social and emotional well-being support
• Stress and anger management programs
• 4 WD driving

100%

7 Governance and Performance 63 Human Resources Work, Health and 
Safety

A safe working environment • Provide training in Work, Health and Safety
• Supporting a safe and healthy work environment

80%

7 Governance and Performance 64 Human Resources Employee 
Performance

Staff performance and retention • Updating skills audit to ascertain training needs within organisation
• Supporting managers in annual performance reviews
• Review of position descriptions

90%

7 Governance and Performance 65 Human Resources Employee 
Management

Recruitment and management of staff • Roll-out of Human Resource Manual, including recruitment, performance management and performance appraisals
• Training to staff on Human Resources procedures as detailed in manual

90%

1 Economic Development 66 Human Resources Community Capacity 
Building

Provision of capacity building opportunities for 
community members

• Working with Community Services and Infrastructure, Works and Projects, collaborate with local employment services to 
ensure job seekers are provided with training relevant to current and future Council’s and community skill needs.

• Collaborating with employment service providers to support both female and male job seekers through: 
 
        * Council placements 
        * Collaboration in Council projects

100%
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5 Year Corporate Plan Area Ref Area Focus Objective Key Performance Indicators (KPI) % Complete

7 Governance and Performance 67 Human Resources Employee Tenancy Safe accommodation • Ensure tenancy agreements are in place for employees
• Ensure accommodation meets WHS needs in line with budget
• Work with Grants and Business Development Manager to seek funding to implement WHS requirements for employee 

housing

60%

9 Infrastructure Development 68 Human Resources Staff Housing Maintain safe and comfortable staff home 
environments 

• Receive, allocate and program repairs
• Maintain up to date inventories
• Ensure houses are equipped with furniture, fittings and equipment

60%

7 Governance and Performance 69 Human Resources Enterprise Bargaining 
Agreement (EBA)

Preparation for possible Enterprise Bargaining 
Agreement (EBA) in 2018/2019

• Provision of advice to Chief Executive Officer and Council on potential Enterprise Bargaining Agreement (EBA) 100%

Human Resources - Department Average 89%

7 Governance and Performance 70 Infrastructure, Works and 
Projects

Budget Ensure the Infrastructure, Works and Projects 
department operates in line within the 
allocated budget.

Each quarter actual expenditure and revenue to match budgeted. 65%

4 Health, Well-being and Social 
Justice

72 Infrastructure, Works and 
Projects

Community Grants Implement Community Grants policy • Encourage suitable applications to the community grants program
• Provide monthly financial reports on Community Grants usage and outcomes

50%

4 Health, Well-being and Social 
Justice

73 Infrastructure, Works and 
Projects

Animal Management Promote the health of animals in community 
to reduce risk to community members

• Scheduling regular vet visits for surgical de-sexing and anti-parasite treatment
• Provision of training to animal management workers to provide urgent care to animals (for care in-between vet visits)
• Development and implementation of Dog, Cat and Horse health programs
• Development and implementation of animal health education programs to community members
• Working with local shops to ensure stocking of essential pet supplies - anti parasite treatment

75%

4 Health, Well-being and Social 
Justice

74 Infrastructure, Works and 
Projects

Environmental Health Promote the environmental health of 
community

Development and implementation of Food Safety, Water Sanitation, and Mosquito Control programs 80%

9 Infrastructure Development 75 Infrastructure, Works and 
Projects

Capital Works Capital Works Program Develop a Capital Works program in line with prioritisation and Asset Management Plans 50%

9 Infrastructure Development 76 Infrastructure, Works and 
Projects

Town Planning Safe, happy, green and healthy community 
town planning

• Ensuring all new planning works create safe community spaces that promote health and well-being (including BBQs, 
playgrounds, pathways, cycling lanes, sportsgrounds and exercise facilities)

• Ensuring community spaces are well-lit, and are in line with situational crime prevention best practice.
• Utilising the latest technologies were resources allow
• Provision of basic amenities such as food shops, market gardens, laundromats, library
• Ensuring any new infrastructure is in line with best practice
• Designing infrastructure using traditional design and incorporating local art

50%

9 Infrastructure Development 77 Infrastructure, Works and 
Projects

Planning Scheme Review of planning scheme to ensure it meets 
the needs of current and future community 
members

Review of planning scheme 30%
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5 Year Corporate Plan Area Ref Area Focus Objective Key Performance Indicators (KPI) % Complete

9 Infrastructure Development 78 Infrastructure, Works and 
Projects

Building - New Responsible management of new assets, 
compliance with regulator requirement and 
undertaking of works in line with contracts

Coordinating new builds ensuring: 

• Adherence to Work Health and Safety Standards
• Quoting and tendering within Government timeframes
• Complete works, to a high standard, within approved timeframes
• Raising of invoices as soon as works are completed
• Utilisation of local workforce
• Utilisation of local or regional materials
• Architecture in line with “green” building standards and in harmony with traditional design and art
• Disability and aged care design considerations
• Revenue in line with agreed profit margins

50%

9 Infrastructure Development 79 Infrastructure, Works and 
Projects

Building - Repairs and 
Maintenance

Responsible management of repairs and 
maintenance of existing assets, compliance 
with regulator requirements and undertaking 
of works in line with contracts

• Receive, allocate and program works within nominated BAS contract timeframes
• Timely completion of internal works
• Invoice works within 7 days of completion of service
• Utilisation of local workforce
• Revenue in line with agreed profit margins

40%

9 Infrastructure Development 80 Infrastructure, Works and 
Projects

Corporate Buildings Maintain safe and comfortable staff work 
environments 

Receive, allocate and program repairs 50%

9 Infrastructure Development 81 Infrastructure, Works and 
Projects

Fire safety Reduce fire hazards • 6 and 12 monthly services are undertaken
• Rectification works are completed in a timely manner

75%

2 Environment 82 Infrastructure, Works and 
Projects

Carbon Farming Development and maintenance of Carbon 
Farming project

Engaging contractor to provide services 40%

7 Governance and Performance 83 Infrastructure, Works and 
Projects

Fleet Fit for purpose work vehicles in line with 
budget restrictions

• Review of cost / benefits of leasing versus purchasing
• Purchasing vehicles in line with operational requirements and budget
•  Scheduling of repairs and maintenance (reactive and proactive)
• Maintaining vehicle register, including condition assessments
• Development of strategy for fleet replacement 

80%

7 Governance and Performance 84 Infrastructure, Works and 
Projects

Plant Fit for purpose plant in line with budget 
restrictions

Develop and implement Plant Management Plan 75%

2 Environment 85 Infrastructure, Works and 
Projects

Lands and 
Environment

Rangers Program Protect and strengthen Aboriginal cultural heritage, environment and resource management 50%

2 Environment 86 Infrastructure, Works and 
Projects

Parks and Gardens Provide a clean environment for the 
enjoyment of community members, 
stakeholders and tourism

Maintain parks and Public spaces: 
• Waste removal 
• Grounds maintenance

75%
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5 Year Corporate Plan Area Ref Area Focus Objective Key Performance Indicators (KPI) % Complete

9 Infrastructure Development 87 Infrastructure, Works and 
Projects

Projects Coordination of capital works to ensure high-
quality projects in line with budget restrictions

• Development of Project Management Plans
• Tendering for the works in line with Procurement Policy
• Ensuring all projects have scope of works and are implemented in accordance with scope of works
• Onsite monitoring of works
• Works are completed as per Project management Plans
• Any alternations to original scope of works are approved by CEO and incorporated within contract

50%

9 Infrastructure Development 88 Infrastructure, Works and 
Projects

Roads Provision of safe and fit for purpose roads Repair and maintenance of roads in accordance with budget restrictions. 50%

9 Infrastructure Development 89 Infrastructure, Works and 
Projects

Sewerage Provision of fit-for-purpose sewerage services Maintain and develop sewerage systems and plan for community needs that meet all licensing requirements 50%

9 Infrastructure Development 90 Infrastructure, Works and 
Projects

Waste Provision of fit-for-purpose waste services • Maintain and develop waste systems and plan for community needs that meet all licensing requirements
• Promote recycling to reduce waste creation
• Investigate funding opportunities and advocate for: 

 
*replacement rubbish truck 
* UV filtration at shed at dam (for use of treated recycled water of new football field irrigation and possible wash down 
bay for cleaning vehicles 
* automatic filtration and flow meter install at sewage treatment ponds 
* oval dam automatic automation 

50%

9 Infrastructure Development 91 Infrastructure, Works and 
Projects

Water Provision of fit for purpose water services Maintain and develop water systems and plan that meet all licensing requirements 
Advocate for urgent water infrastructure repair and maintenance to provide water security for current and future 
community needs.

50%

9 Infrastructure Development 92 Infrastructure, Works and 
Projects

Air-conditioning Maintain a comfortable temperature for staff 
areas

• 12 monthly services undertaken
• All rectification works are completed in a timely manner
• Development of air-conditioning guidelines to maintain comfortable temperature of areas and reduce energy 

consumption

75%

Infrastructure, Works and Projects -Departmental Average 57%

Whole of Organisation Average 70%
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Councillor Remuneration

The total remuneration, including superannuation 
contributions, paid to each councillor during the 
financial year

Councillor  Super Remuneration

Bernard Teddy NIL $9,556.63

Dick Territa NIL $50,858.89

Fry John NIL $45,305.54

Josiah Jacob Elroy NIL $9,556.63

Josiah Cameron $1,006.47 $10,714.23

Sands Robert Michael $1,744.52 $18,483.48

Stafford Richard Lee $581.49 $9,556.63

Teddy Aaron NIL $45,305.54

Wust Wendy NIL $45,305.54

Yam Michael NIL $88,153.04

Expense Reimbursement Policy (250(1) LGR) -
In accordance with Section 250(1) of the Local 
Government Regulation 2012 (QLD), the expenses 
reimbursement policy is a policy providing for the 
following:

(a) payment of reasonable expenses

  incurred, or to be incurred, by councillors   

for discharging their duties and    

responsibilities as councillors;

(b) provision of facilities to councillors for that   

purpose.

 Council adopted its “Expenses Reimbursement Policy – 

Councillors” at the 15 April 2020 Council Meeting. 

Resolutions re threshold for non-current 
physical asset to be treated as an expense 
(206(2) LGR) -  

NIL

Expenditure on Grants to 
Community Organisations
Kowanyama Aboriginal Shire Council has a 
Community Grants Policy to support entities and 
individuals to undertake activities for the benefit of 
Kowanyama. The following community grants were 
provided in 2019/20: 

Expenditure from Councillor 
Discretionary Funds 

NIL

Expenses incurred by, and the facilities provided to 
each councillor, during the financial year under the 
expenses reimbursement policy 

 

Applicant Approved Amount

Tania Major Consulting $5,337.16

Total 2019/20 Financial Year $5,337.16
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Councillor Action Complaints Details
orders made under section 150AH(1) of the LGA NIL
decisions, orders and recommendations made under section 150AR(1) of the LGA NIL
each of the following during the financial year 

the name of each councillor for whom a decision, order or recommendation under section 150(I(2), 

150AH(1) or 150 AR(1) of the LGA was made
NIL

a description of the unsuitable meeting conduct, inappropriate conduct or misconduct engaged in 

by each of the councillors;
NIL

complaints referred to the assessor under section 150P(2)(a) of the LGA by the local government, a 

councillor of the local government or the chief executive officer of the local government
NIL

matters, mentioned in section 150P(3) of the LGA, notified to the Crime and Corruption Commission NIL
notices given under section 150R(2) of the LGA NIL
otices given under section 150S(2)(a) of the LGA NIL
decisions made under section 150W(1)(a), (b) and (d) of the LGA (1 July 2019 to 31 August 2019); NIL
decisions made under section 150W(1)(a), (b) and (e) of the LGA(1 September 2019 to 30 June 

2020);
NIL

referral notices accompanied by a recommendation mentioned in section 150AC(3)(a) of the LGA NIL
occasions information was given under section 150AF(4)(a) of the LGA NIL
occasions the local government asked another entity to investigate, under chapter 5A, part 3, 

division 5 of the LGA for the local government, the suspected inappropriate conduct of a councillor
NIL

applications heard by the conduct tribunal NIL

about the alleged misconduct of a councilor (1 July 2019 to 31 August 2019), and NIL
under chapter 5A, part 3, division 6 of the Act about whether a councilor engaged in misconduct or 

inappropriate conduct (1 September 2019 to 30 June 2020)
NIL

Administrative Action Complaints Details
A statement about the local government’s 

commitment to dealing fairly with administrative 

action complaints

Council is fully committed to dealing fairly with 

administrative action complaints and has a Complaints 

Management Policy which sets out the steps lodging and 

dealing with complaints. 

A statement about how the local government 

has implemented its complaints management 

process, including an assessment of the local 

government’s performance in resolving 

complaints under the process.

Council’s Complaints Management Policy is available on 

our website and in hard copy when requested.  As part 

of the complaints management process council actively 

communicates the ways in which complaints can be made 

through our newsletters, social media and website.   As yet 

no administrative action complaints have been received, 

however council has the processes in place to deal with 

them if and when received.

Councillor Complaints

Administrative Action Complaints
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Administrative Action Complaints Details
administrative action complaints resolved by 

the local government under the complaints 

management process;

administrative action complaints not resolved 

by the local government under the complaints 

management process; and

NIL

the number of administrative action complaints 

not resolved by the local government under 

the complaints management process that were 

made in a previous financial year.

NIL

Complaints Management Process
Council has a comprehensive Complaints 
Management Policy and form which are available 
on our website.

Equal Opportunity in Employment
Council is committed to equal opportunity and 
endorsed a revised Code of Conduct in June 2018.

Senior Management Remuneration
The total of all remuneration packages that are 
payable (in the year to which the annual report 
relates) to the senior management of the local 
government - $915,164.48

The number of employees in senior management 
who are being paid each band of remuneration
Each band of remuneration is an increment of 
$100,000.

Investigation Notices
Council did not receive any Investigative Notices 
from Queensland Competition Authority.

Salary Range  Number of Employees

$1 - $100,000 0 

$100,000 - $200,000 7

$200,000 - $300,000 0

Internal Audit
The Internal Audit function is legislatively required 
to assess and evaluate the control measures the 
organisation has adopted, or plans to adopt, to 
manage the operational risks to which the Local 
Government operations are exposed.

The Internal Audit function is an integral part 
of Kowanyama Aboriginal Shire Council’s 
governance framework.

Internal Audit is managed by Governance and 
Operations and monitored by the Audit and Risk 
Committee.

Beneficial Enterprises
Council does not currently have any Beneficial 
Enterprises. 

Commercial Business Units
Council does not currently have any adopted 
commercial business units.

Overseas Travel
There was no overseas travel by a Councillor or 
local government employee in an official capacity 
during the financial year.

Invitations to Change Tender
Council did not receive any invitations to change 
tenders during the financial year.
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Competitive Neutrality Complaints

a summary of investigation notices given in the financial year under S49 of the LGR for 
competitive neutrality complaints;

NIL

the local government’s responses in the financial year on the QCA’s recommendations on 
any competitive neutrality complaints under S52(3) of the LGR.

NIL

Rates and Charges
Council did not levy any special rates or charges in 
the 2019-2020 financial year.

Registers
Council holds the following registers:

• Register of Electoral Gifts
• Register of Interest of each Councillor and 

Executive Manager
• Register of Interest of persons related to 

Councillor

• Related Party Transaction Register
• Minutes of Local Government Meetings
• Road Register/Road Maps
• Schedule of Fees and Charges
• Register of Local Laws and Subordinate Local 

Laws
• Register of Burials
• Register of Regulatory Fees
• Register of Delegations
• Register of Council Policies
• Resolution Register
• Complaints Register
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Community Financial Report is a summarised 
version of the Council’s financial results and 
financial position presented to the community as a 
part of Annual report pursuant to section 179 of the 
Local Government Regulation 2012.

It contains information in the following sections of 
the Financial Report.

• Statement of Comprehensive Income 
(Operating Results) - This details the total income 
earned and total expenses incurred during the 
financial year and whether Council made a 
surplus or deficit.

• Balance Sheet (Statement of Financial Position) - 
This shows all the assets (the items which Council 
owns, or is owed) and liabilities (what Council 
owes to others). The difference between the 
value of Councils assets and its liabilities is 
called Community Equity, and the greater the 
Community Equity, the better financial position 
the Council is in.

• Statement of Changes in Equity - This shows 
the movements between the elements of 
Community Equity which are in the Balance 
Sheet.

• Statement of Cash Flows - This shows the nature 
and amounts of cash inflows/outflows from the 
activities which Council is engaged in.

• Financial Sustainability Ratios - These financial 
sustainability ratios provide a useful snapshot 
as to Council’s ability to maintain its financial 
capital and infrastructure capital over the long 
term.

Income Statement (Operating Results)
Income Statement shows all sources of revenue 
the Council has earned and expenditure it has 
incurred during the financial year as well as net 
result (i.e. revenue less expenditure) which can be 
a surplus or a deficit.

Revenue mainly comprise operating (recurrent) 
income and capital income which is meant to be 
spent on replacement or addition to the Council’s 
infrastructure assets (Roads, buildings, water, sewer 
and other non-current assets).

Expenditure comprise operating (expenditure 
incurred on day-to-day running of the Council’s 
activities such as payments on utilities, 
consumables, operating wages, debt servicing, 
trading stocks, services and asset deprecation 
due to use) and capital (expenditure incurred 
on infrastructure and other assets which provide 
benefits for more than a year).

Revenue:  As shown by the following table and 
graph, the total revenue for 2019/20 has reduced 
to $27.5 million from $37.5 million in 2019. This 
decrease is mainly due to

• Decrease in revenue from contracts and 
recoverable works ($.9 million increase). 

• Decrease in capital grants and contributions 
($9.20 million decrease) due to receiving $8M in 
ICCIP funding in 18/19

Community Financial Report
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Source ($ 000’s) 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
Rates, levies and charges 492 451 415 910 967

Fees and charges 437 476 690 640 445

Rental income 1,715 1,597 1,654 1,107 1,170

Interest received 80 106 90 27 15

Sales revenue 3,570 4,517 6,691 4,864 6,900

Other income 821 590 292 408 1,341

Operating Grants 8,350 8,211 7,848 7,777 7,038

Capital Grants 12,076 21,270 13,409 7,537 13,447

Total income 27,542 37,218 31,089 23,269 31,321

• Fees and Charges have declined from $ 476k in 2019 to $ 436k in 2020

Council’s Annual Revenue - last five years
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Total recurrent revenue (i.e. total revenue less 
capital grants) have decreased to $13.5 in 2020 
from $ 14.2 million in 2019. 
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The Council’s Expenditure base over last five years

Source ($ 000’s) 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
Employee Benefits 8,758 8,198 7,747 6,063 6,985

Material and services 8,205 6,027 9,243 8,136 10,012

Finance costs 316 272.699 73 112 65

Depreciation and amortisation 7,600 7,392 7,277 6,128 5,740

Other expenses 97 2,344 584 64 -

Capital expenses 4,499 2,666 18 278 1,341

Total expenses 29,474 26,899 24,942 21,782 22,803

Expenditure: Total expenditure have increased to 
$29.4 million in 2020 from $26.9 million in 2019. This is 
due to

• Increase in employment costs ($559k) resulting 
from a higher volume of program delivery and 
additional operational works within community.

Council’s Annual Expenditure - last five years
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The following table and graph illustrate movement 
in total expenditure over last five years.
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The Council’s revenue, expenditure and net result over the last five years

Elements ($ 000’s) 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
Total income 27,542 37,218 31,089 23,269 31,321

Total expenses 29,474 26,898 24,942 21,782 22,803

Net result -1,932 10,319 6,147 1,488 8,518

Net Result: The Council report a deficit of $ 1.9 
million for 2020. This is mainly attributable to 
decrease in capital grants to $12.0 million in 2020 
from $21.2 million in 2019.

A snapshot of the Council’s revenue, expenditure 
and net results over the last five years is illustrated 
by the following table and the graph.
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Summarised Balance Sheets over last five years

Elements ($ 000’s) 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
Cash and cash equivalents 9,173 10,593 8,506 5,801 4,790

Trade and Other Receivables 818 2,490 2,381 2,440 2,829

Inventories 677 733 536 372 424

Other financial assets 7,078 5,852 5,734 3,544 3,721

Property, plant and equipment 166,901 14,026 130,875 129,004 124,293

Total assets 184,646 163,694 148,032 141,161 136,057

2020 2019 2018 2017 2016

Trade and Other Payables 2,807 2,642 2,308 2,105 4,298

Borrowings 1,642 1,768 1,890 2,009 2,122

Other Liabilities 6,277 - 0 0 0

Provisions 3,199 3,132 685 166 181

Total Liabilities 13,925 7,542 4,883 4,280 6,601

Equal to

Assets revaluation surplus 98,126 77,355 75,057 74,935 68,998

Retained surplus 72,595 78,796 68,093 61,946 60,458

Total community equity 170,721 156,152 143,150 136,881 129,456

Balance Sheet 
(Statement of Financial Position)
Balance Sheet shows the Council’s financial 
position in terms of assets (the Council owns), 
liabilities (the Council owes) and the equity (Net 
worth of the community which is equal to total 
assets minus total liabilities).

Total assets (refer to the following table) have 
increased to $184m in 2020 from $163 million in 
2019. This is mainly due to

• Decrease in cash and cash equivalents ($1.4 
million) resulting from decreased revenue 
(capital grants, recoverable works and rent),

• Increase in Property, plant and equipment 
($23 million) mainly around the new road 
construction and the full valuation of PPE.

Total liabilities have increased to $13.9 million in 
2020 from $7.5 million in 2019, mostly triggered by 
the increase in the new accounting standards for 
Revenue ($5.8M) and the recognition of contract 
liabilities under the new accounting standards.

Total Community Equity has risen to $170 million in 
2020 from $156 million in 2019 due to 2020 surplus of 
$18.8 million added to the Community Equity.
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Closing Balance ($ 000’s) 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
Retained Surplus 98,126 78,796 68,093 61,946 60,548

Asset Revaluation Surplus 72,595 77,355 75,057 74,935 68,998

Total expenses 170,721 156,152 143,150 136,881 129,456

Statement of Changes in 
Equity (the net worth of Council)
Movements in community net wealth across 
financial years depend on annual net result 
(surplus or deficit) and changes in asset revaluation 
reserve.

As financial year, 2020, reports a deficit of $1.9 
million, community net wealth has increased from 
2019 to 2020 by this deficit as well the increase of 
$20.7 million for asset revaluations.

The movements in community net wealth are 
shown in the following table and the graph.
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Where Funds came from ($000’s)

2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
Receipts from customers 6,333 7,157 10,194 8,619 10,013

Capital Grants, subsidies, 

contributions and donations

12,075 21,270 10,938 7,537 13,426

Non-capital grants and 

contributions

8,350 8,211 7,848 7,777 7,038

Rental income 1,715 1,598 1,654 1,107 1,170

Finance lease receipts 200 197 161 114 112

Interest received 80 106 90 27 15

Proceeds from the sale of assets 94 0 34 0 21

Proceeds from borrowings 0 0 0 0 0

Total Funds/earned/received 28,847 38,538 30,919 25,181 31,795

Statement of Cash Flows
Statement of Cash flows provides an analysis 
of how the Council generated total funds and 
how these funds have been expended including 
movements in remaining cash balances.

The following table and the graph show where the 
funds came in to the Council for 2019/20 financial 
year.
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The following table and the graph show how funds 
were expended for 2019/20 financial year.

 

 How Funds were expended

2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
Payment to suppliers and 

employees

16,429 15,803 19,036 18,707 18,975

Payment for property, plant and 

equipment

13,713 20,526 9,060 5,349 15,555

Repayment for borrowings 126 122 119 113 41

Total funds expended 30,268 36,452 28,215 24,169 34,571
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How Funds were expended
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Ratio Types Purpose of Ratio Caculation Overview Target Range 2019-2020 2018-2019

Operating 
Surplus Ratio

This ratio is a measure of a 
local government’s ability 

to cover its
operational costs and have 

revenues available for 
capital funding

or other purposes.

Net result (excluding 
capital items) divided 

by total operating 
revenue (excluding 

capital items)

Between 0% 
and 10%

-62% -43%

Asset 
Sustainability 
Ratio

This ratio indicates whether 
a local government is 
replacing or renewing 
existing non-financial 

assets at the same rate 
that its overall asset stock is 

wearing out

Capital expenditure 
on the replacement 
of assets (renewals) 

divided by 
depreciation expense

Greater 
than 90%

108% 70%

Net financial 
liabilities Ratio

This ratio is an indicator of 
the extent to which the 

net financial liabilities of a 
local government can be 

serviced by its operating 
revenues.

Total liabilities less 
current assets divided 

by total operating 
revenue (excluding 

capital items)

Not greater 
than 60%

9% -33%

Financial Sustainability Ratios
Section 179 (2) [c] of the Local Government 
Regulations 2012 requires a Local Government 
to include in its Community Financial Report 
the relevant Financial Sustainability Ratios for 
the current financial year. The Department of 
Local Government, Community Recovery and 
Resilience has published a Financial Management 
(Sustainability) Guideline to assist Councils to 
properly calculate and record the Ratios.

These financial sustainability ratios provide a useful 
snapshot as to Council’s ability to maintain its 
financial capital and infrastructure capital over the 
long term.

The following three Ratios have been included as 
part of Council’s Annual Financial Statements for 
2019-2020.
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Kowanyama Aboriginal Shire Council 
Statement of Comprehensive Income 
for the year ended 30 June 2020 

 
 
 
 

Income 
Revenue 

2020 Restated 2019 
Note $ $ 

 

 

Recurrent revenue  

Rates, levies and charges 3(a) 492,387  451,004 
Fees and charges 3(b) 436,740  476,162 
Sales revenue 3(d) 3,570,433  4,516,704 
Other revenue 3(e) 727,672  589,615 
Grants, subsidies, contributions and donations 4(a) 8,350,479  8,210,582 

  13,577,711  14,244,067 
Capital revenue 
Grants, subsidies, contributions and donations 

 
4(b) 

 
12,075,723 

  
21,270,424 

  12,075,723  21,270,424 

Rental income 3(c) 1,714,984 
 

1,597,630 
Interest received  80,296  106,270 
Other capital income 5 93,636  - 

Total income  27,542,350  37,218,390 

 
Expenses 

    

Recurrent expenses     
Employee benefits 6 (8,757,800)  (8,198,294) 
Materials and services 7 (8,205,179)  (6,026,935) 
Finance costs  (315,819)  (272,699) 
Depreciation and amortisation     

Property, plant and equipment 12 (7,532,906)  (7,391,573) 
Right of use assets 14 (67,274)  - 

Other expenses 16 (96,586)  (2,343,645) 
  (24,975,564)  (24,233,146) 

 
Capital expenses 

 
8 

 
(4,498,715) 

  
(2,665,780) 

Total expenses  (29,474,279)  (26,898,927) 
  

 

  

Net result  (1,931,929)  10,319,464 

 
Other comprehensive income 

    

Items that will not be reclassified to net result     
Increase in asset revaluation surplus 12 20,770,989  2,298,480 

Total other comprehensive income for the year  20,770,989  2,298,480 
  

 

  

Total comprehensive income for the year  18,839,060  12,617,944 
     

 
The above statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes and Significant Accounting Policies. 

 

The comparatives have not been restated on adoption of AASB 15/1058 and AASB 16 and therefore the comparative information is 
presented using the previous standards relating to revenue and leases. 

70      Kowanyama Aboriginal Shire Council 



Page 4  

Kowanyama Aboriginal Shire Council 
Statement of Financial Position 
as at 30 June 2020 

 

2020 Restated 2019 Restated 
1 July 2018 

   Note    $ $ $  

Current assets 
Cash and cash equivalents 

 
9 

 
9,172,964 10,593,069 8,506,230 

Receivables 10 800,161 2,285,529 2,171,392 
Inventories 11 676,922 733,126 535,651 
Contract assets 13 1,676,047 - - 
Lease receivables 14   203,500   199,822 196,211 
Total current assets    12,529,595   13,811,546 11,409,484 

Non-current assets 
Receivables 

 
10 

 
17,500 204,258 209,858 

Lease receivables 14 5,197,973 5,651,903 5,538,244 
Property, plant and equipment 12 166,281,551 144,026,045 131,258,538 
Right of use asset 14   619,721   - -  
Total non-current assets  172,116,745 149,882,206 137,006,640 

  
 

 
 

Total assets    184,646,340   163,693,752 148,416,124 

Current liabilities 
Payables 

 
15 

 
2,806,668 2,642,230 2,308,054 

Contract liabilities 13 5,806,050 - - 
Borrowings 17 129,150 125,593 122,133 
Lease liabilities 14 74,158 - - 
Provisions 16   176,054   2,646,368 129,854 
Total current liabilities    8,992,082   5,414,191 2,560,041 

Non-current liabilities 
Borrowings 

 

17 

 

1,512,687 1,641,981 1,767,713 
Lease liabilities 14 396,919 - - 
Provisions 16   3,023,368   485,982 554,717 
Total non-current liabilities    4,932,975   2,127,963 2,322,430 

Total liabilities  
 

  13,925,057   7,542,154 4,882,471 

Net community assets  
 

  170,721,283   156,151,597 143,533,652 
 
Community equity 
Asset revaluation surplus 

 
 

12 

 

 

98,126,173 77,355,184 75,056,704 
Retained surplus  72,595,110 78,796,414 68,476,949 

Total community equity  
 

  170,721,283   156,151,597 143,533,652 
 
 
 

The above statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes and Significant Accounting Policies. 

The comparatives have not been restated on adoption of AASB 15/1058 and AASB 16 and therefore the comparative information is presented using the 
previous standards relating to revenue and leases. 
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Kowanyama Aboriginal Shire Council 
Statement of Changes in Equity 
for the year ended 30 June 2020 

 

 

Asset 
revaluation 

surplus 
Note 12 

Retained 
surplus 

Total 

  $ $ $  
 

Balance as at 1 July 2019  77,355,184 78,796,413 156,151,597 

Adjustment on initial application of AASB 15/AASB 1058 23 - (4,241,131) (4,241,131) 
Adjustment on initial application of AASB 16 23   - (28,243) (28,243) 
Restated balance at 1 July 2019    77,355,184 74,527,039 151,882,223 

Net result 
Other comprehensive income for the year 

Increase in asset revaluation surplus 

 
- (1,931,929) (1,931,929) 

 
20,770,989 - 20,770,989 

Total comprehensive income for the year    20,770,989 (1,931,929) 18,839,060 

Balance as at 30 June 2020    98,126,173 72,595,110 170,721,283 

 
 

Balance as at 1 July 2018  75,056,704 68,093,070 143,149,774 
Effect of correction of error 26 - 383,879 383,879 
Restated balances  75,056,704 68,476,949 143,533,653 
Net result  - 8,737,464 8,737,464 
Effect of correction of error 26   - 1,582,000 1,582,000 
Restated 
Other comprehensive income for the year 

Increase in asset revaluation surplus 

 - 10,319,464 10,319,464 
 
  2,298,480 - 2,298,480 

Total comprehensive income for the year    2,298,480 10,319,464 12,617,944 
 

Balance as at 30 June 2019  
 77,355,184 78,796,413 156,151,597 

 

 
 
 

The above statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies. 
The comparatives have not been restated on adoption of AASB 15/1058 and AASB 16 and therefore the comparative information is 
presented using the previous standards relating to revenue and leases. 
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Kowanyama Aboriginal Shire Council 
Statement of Cash Flows 
for the year ended 30 June 2020 

 

 

 
 

Note 
   

2020 Restated 2019 
  $ $  

Cash flows from operating activities 
Receipts from customers 

  
6,332,807 

  
7,156,651 

Payments to suppliers and employees    (16,429,106)    (15,802,908) 
  (10,096,298)  (8,646,257) 
Interest received  80,296  106,270 
Rental income  1,714,984  1,597,630 
Non-capital grants and contributions 4(a)   8,350,479    8,210,582 
Net cash inflow from operating activities 21   49,460    1,268,224 

Cash flows from investing activities 
Payments for property, plant and equipment 

 
12 

 
(13,713,010) 

  
(20,526,382) 

Proceeds from sale of property plant and equipment 5 93,636  - 
Finance lease receipts 14 199,822  196,845 
Grants, subsidies, contributions and donations 4(b)   12,075,723    21,270,424 
Net cash (outflow) from investing activities    (1,343,829)    940,887 

Cash flows from financing activities 
Repayment of borrowings 

 
17 

 
  (125,736) 

  
  (122,272) 

Net cash (outflow) from financing activities    (125,736)    (122,272) 

Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents held  (1,420,105)  2,086,839 

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the financial year  
10,593,069 

 
8,506,230 

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the financial year 9   9,172,964    10,593,069 
 

The above statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies. 

The comparatives have not been restated on adoption of AASB 15/1058 and AASB 16 and therefore the comparative information is 
presented using the previous standards relating to revenue and leases 
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Kowanyama Aboriginal Shire Council 
Notes to the financial statements 
for the year ended 30 June 2020 

 

 

 

1 Significant accounting policies 
 

1.a Basis of preparation 
 

These general purpose financial statements are for the period 1 July 2019 to 30 June 2020 and have been prepared in 
compliance with the requirements of the Local Government Act 2009 and the Local Government Regulation 2012 . 

 
These financial statements comply with Australian Accounting Standards and Interpretations issued by the Australian Accounting 
Standards Board (AASB). Council is a not-for-profit entity for financial reporting purposes and complies with Australian 
Accounting Standards as applicable to not-for-profit entities. 

 
These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention except for certain current and non-current 
assets which are measured at fair value. 

 
The Council uses the Australian dollar as its functional currency and its presentation currency and rounds to the nearest dollar. 

 

1.b Constitution 
 

The Kowanyama Aboriginal Shire Council is constituted under the Queensland Local Government Act 2009 and is domiciled in 
Australia. 

 

1.c Date of authorisation 
 

The financial statements were authorised for issue on the date they were submitted to the Auditor-General for final signature. This 
is the date the management certificate is signed. 

 
1.d New and revised Accounting Standards 

 

Kowanyama Aboriginal Shire Council adopted all standards which became mandatorily effective for annual reporting periods 
beginning on 1 July 2019. The new standards which had an impact on reported position, performance and cash flows were those 
relating to revenue and leases. 

 

Refer to the change in accounting policy note 23 for transition disclosures for AASB 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers, 
AASB 1058 Income of Not-for-Profit Entities and AASB 16 Leases. 

 
1.e Standards issued by the AASB not yet effective 

 
The AASB has issued Australian Accounting Standards and Interpretations which are not effective at 30 June 2020. These 
standards have not been adopted by Council and will be included in the financial statements on their effective date. Where the 
standard is expected to have a significant impact for Council then further information has been provided in this note. 

 
The following list identifies the new Australian Accounting Standards that were issued but not yet effective at the time of preparing 
these financial statements that could be applicable to Council. 

 
Effective for NFP 
annual report 
periods 
beginning on of 
after: 

 
AASB 1059 Service Concession Arrangements: Grantors 1 January 2020 
AASB 2018-7 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards - Definition of Material 1 January 2020 
AASB 2019-3 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards - Interest Rate Benchmark Reform 1 January 2020 
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Kowanyama Aboriginal Shire Council 
Notes to the financial statements 
for the year ended 30 June 2020 

 

 

 

1.f Estimates and judgements 
 

Council has made a number of judgements, estimates and assumptions in preparing these financial statements. These are based 
on the best information available to Council at the time, however due to the passage of time, these assumptions may change and 
therefore the recorded balances may not reflect the final outcomes. The significant judgements, estimates and assumptions 
relate to the following items and specific information is provided in the relevant note: 

 
Fair value assessments of property, plant and equipment - Note 12 
Estimated useful lives of property, plant and equipment - Note 12 
Valuation of finance leases - Note 14 
Landfill provision - Note 16 
Contingent liabilities - Note 19 
Revenue - Note 3 

 
1.g Financial assets and financial liabilities 

 
Council recognises a financial asset or a financial liability in its Statement of Financial Position when, and only when, Council 
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. 

 

Kowanyama Aboriginal Shire Council has categorised and measured the financial assets and financial liabilities held at balance 
date as follows: 

 
Financial assets 
Cash and cash equivalents - measured at amortised cost (Note 9) 
Receivables - measured at amortised cost (Note 10) 
Other financial assets (finance leases) - measured at fair value through profit or loss (Note 14) 

 
Financial liabilities 
Payables - measured at amortised cost (Note 15) 
Borrowings - measured at amortised cost (Note 17) 

 

1.h Taxation 
 
 

Income of local authorities and public authorities is exempt from Commonwealth taxation. However, Council is subject to Fringe 
Benefits Tax and Goods and Services Tax (‘GST’). The net amount of GST recoverable from the ATO or payable to the ATO is 
shown as an asset or liability respectively. 

Annual Report 2019-2020    75



Page 9 

Kowanyama Aboriginal Shire Council 
Notes to the financial statements 
for the year ended 30 June 2020 

2 Analysis of results by function 

 

 

 

(a) Components of Council functions 
 

The activities relating to the Council's components reported on in Note 2(b) are as follows : 
Office of CEO 
The objective of the Office of the CEO is for Council to be open, accountable, transparent and deliver value for 
money community outcomes. This function includes setting strategic and operational planning and support for 
community. The Mayor, Councillors and Chief Executive Officer are included in the Office of the CEO. Key 
operational control along with revenue generation including accommodation and car hire are managed by this 
department. 
This function includes:- 
* Accommodation and car hire 

* Mayor and Councillors 
* Disaster management 

 

Community services 
Community services and facilities include cultural, health, welfare and recreational services. 

This function includes:- 

* Post Office agency 

* Management of the home and community care program 

* Recreation services 

* Childcare centre 

* Centrelink agency 

* Women's shelter 

 
Corporate governance 
Corporate governance's role is to ensure that Council is open, accountable and transparent for the community. This 
function includes strategic planning around governance, advocacy and stakeholder relationships. It manages internal 
audit and strategic risk management as well as legal, document management and administrative support. 

This function includes:- 
* Internal Audit & Audit Committee 
* Policy & Procedures 

* Advocacy 

* Legal and Governance 
* Information Technology and Website 
* Risk Management 
* Records Management 

 
Finance 
Finance provides professional finance services across all of Council. This function includes budget support, 
financial and management accounting services. The goal of this function is to provide accurate, timely and 
appropriate information to support sound decision making and meet statutory requirements. 

This function includes:- 
* Finance 
* Cairns administration 
* Purchasing and stores 
* Bakery & Blue Cafe 
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(a) Components of Council functions (Continued) 
 

Human resources 
Human resources provides professional human resource services across all of Council. This function includes 
recruitment, ongoing support to staff via training and payroll services. 

This function includes:- 
* Human Resources 
* Payroll 
* WHS 

 

Infrastructure and projects 
Provision of critical infrastructure and public housing within the DOGIT area. 
* Workshop 
* Building services 

* Providing and maintaining local and access roads and drainage 

* Animal and Environment management programs 
* Providing water supply services 

* Providing sewerage services 
* Providing refuse collection and disposal services 
* Airport 
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2 Analysis of results by function 
(b) Income and expenses defined between recurring and capital are attributed to the following functions: 

Year ended 30 June 2020 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Year ended 30 June 2019 (restated) 
Functions Gross program income Total 

income 
Gross program expenses Total 

expenses 
Net result 

from recurring 
operations 

Net 
Result 

Assets 
 
 

2019 
$ 

Recurring Capital Recurring 
 

2019 
$ 

Capital 
 

2019 
$ 

Grants Other Grants Other 
2019 

$ 
2019 

$ 
2019 

$ 
2019 

$ 
2019 

$ 
2019 

$ 
2019 

$ 
2019 

$ 

Office of CEO - 1,255,223 - - 1,255,223 (4,761,989) (2,665,780) (7,427,769) (3,506,766) (6,172,546) 5,356 
Community Services 2,338,207 605,562 - - 2,943,769 (3,291,961) - (3,291,961) (348,192) (348,192) 65,040 
Corporate Governance - - - - - (193,180) - (193,180) (193,180) (193,180) 400,897 
Finance 4,486,110 219,378 - - 4,705,488 (2,055,825) - (2,055,825) 2,649,663 2,649,663 19,520,507 
Human Resources - 182,354 - - 182,354 (145,013) - (145,013) 37,342 37,342 - 
Infrastructure and 
Projects 

1,386,265 5,474,868 21,270,424 - 28,131,557 (13,785,179) - (13,785,179) (6,924,046) 14,346,378 143,701,953 

Total Council 8,210,582 7,737,385 21,270,424 - 37,218,390 (24,233,146) (2,665,780) (26,898,926) (8,285,180) 10,319,464 163,693,752 
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Functions Gross program income Total 
income 

Gross program expenses Total 
expenses 

Net result 
from recurrent 

operations 

Net 
Result 

Assets 
 
 

2020 
$ 

Recurrent Capital Recurrent 
 

2020 
$ 

Capital 
 

2020 
$ 

Grants Other Grants Other 
2020 

$ 
2020 

$ 
2020 

$ 
2020 

$ 
2020 

$ 
2020 

$ 
2020 

$ 
2020 

$ 
Office of CEO 130,000 1,611,858 - 93,636 1,835,494 (7,199,650) (4,498,715) (11,698,365) (5,457,792) (9,862,871) - 
Community Services 2,625,359 883,472 - - 3,508,831 (3,408,012) - (3,408,012) 100,819 100,819 - 
Corporate Governance - - - - - (580,528) - (580,528) (580,528) (580,528) 558,614 
Finance 4,298,407 547,089 - - 4,845,496 (2,079,245) - (2,079,245) 2,766,251 2,766,251 18,364,788 
Human Resources - 136,357 - - 136,357 (355,244) - (355,244) (218,887) (218,887) - 
Infrastructure and 
Projects 

1,296,713 3,843,736 12,075,723 - 17,216,171 (11,352,884) - (11,352,884) (6,212,436) 5,863,287 165,722,937 

Total Council 8,350,479 7,022,512 12,075,723 93,636 27,542,350 (24,975,564) (4,498,715) (29,474,279) (9,602,573) (1,931,929) 184,646,340 
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3 Revenue 
 
 
 

Revenue recognised at point in time 

AASB15 AASB1058 
  Note $   $  

 

Rates, levies and charges 3a - 492,387 
Fees and charges 3b 436,740 - 
Sales revenue 3d 1,577,160 - 
Other revenue 3e  78,228   649,445 
Grants, subsidies, contributions and donations 4    -   7,045,014 

  2,092,128   8,186,846 
  

 

Revenue recognised over time 
 

Sales revenue 3d 1,993,272  - 
Grants, subsidies, contributions and donations 4 1,305,464 12,075,723 

 
 

3,298,737  12,075,723 
  

 
  

Total revenue   5,390,865  20,262,569 
  

 
2020 2019 

  Note $   $  
 

(a) Rates, levies and charges 
Community general service levy - (7,503) 
Rates   492,387   458,507 

  492,387   451,004 
  

 
2020 accounting policy: Rates and annual charges are recognised as revenue when the Council obtains control over the 
assets comprising these receipts which is the beginning of the rating period to which they relate. Prepaid rates and 
annual charges are recognised as a financial liability until the beginning of the rating period. 

 

2019 accounting policy: Rates and annual charges are recognised as revenue at the start of the rating period. If a 
ratepayer pays their rates before the start of the rating period, they are recognised as revenue when they are received. 

 

(b) Fees and charges 
Aged care home 3,107 3,159 
Bank, post office, commissions 130,536 107,370 
Airport landing fees 219,480 287,287 
Others   83,617   78,345 

  436,740   476,162 
  

 

2020 accounting policy: Revenue arising from fees and charges is recognised when or as the performance obligation is 
completed and the customer receives the benefit of the goods / services being provided. 

 
The performance obligation relates to the specific services which are provided to the customers and generally the 
payment terms are within 30 days of the provision of the service or in some cases, the customer is required to pay on the 
provision of the service. There is no material obligation for Council in relation to refunds or returns. 

 
Licences granted by Council are all either short-term or low value and all revenue from licences is recognised at the time 
that the licence is granted rather than the term of the licence. 

 
2019 accounting policy: Fees and charges are recognised when Council is unconditionally entitled to those funds. 
Generally this is upon lodgement of the relevant applications or documents, issuing of the infringement notice or when 
the service is provided. 

 

(c) Rental income 
Contractors camp 295,732 161,955 
Donga accommodation 498,787 324,202 
Canteen 59,917 163,333 
Other rent   282,123   374,294 

  1,714,984   1,597,630 
  

 
2020 accounting policy: Rent from housing and other property is recognised on a straight-line basis over the lease term. 

 

2019 accounting policy: Rent from housing and other property is recognised based on rental agreements. 
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3 Revenue (Continued)  

  2020  2019 
    Note $     $  
(d) Sales revenue    
 Sale of services    
 Contract and recoverable works - building & maintenance teams 1,842,086  1,861,308 
 Contract and recoverable works - other 367,012  389,735 
    2,209,099    2,251,043 
 Sale of goods    
 Aviation fuel 327,561  358,699 
 Post office 212,631  131,856 
 Bakery 189,630  131,642 
 Blue Café 244,501  - 
 Fuel sales 126,621  - 
 Cement, sand and gravel 26,910  1,410,453 
 Power card sales 115,410  145,718 
 Others   118,070    87,292 
    1,361,334    2,265,661 

 Total sales revenue   3,570,433    4,516,704 
 

The sale of goods is recognised when the customer has taken delivery of the goods. Revenue from services is recognised 
when the service is rendered. 

 
The Council generates revenues from a number of services including contracts for road and earthworks, building and 
maintenance services . Revenue from contracts and recoverable works generally comprises a recoupment of material 
costs together with an hourly charge for use of equipment and employees. Contract revenue and associated costs are 
recognised by reference to the stage of completion of the contract activity based on costs incurred at the reporting date. 
Revenue is measured at the fair value of consideration received or receivable in relation to that activity. Where 
consideration is received for the service in advance it is included in other liabilities and is recognised as revenue in the 
period when the service is performed. 

(e) Other revenue 
 Trainee and apprentice subsidies  131,728  97,500 

Cost recoveries  44,542  95,934 
Insurance recoveries  -  42,400 
Gain on revaluation of finance leases 14 -  314,116 
Other income    551,402    39,665 

    727,672    589,615 
4 Grants, subsidies, contributions and donations     

(a) Recurrent     
 State government subsidies and grants  4,120,154  3,568,652 
 Commonwealth government subsidies and grants  4,230,325  4,572,632 
 Other subsidies and grants    -     69,298 
     8,350,479    8,210,582 
 
(b) 

 
Capital 
State government subsidies and grants 

  
 

8,970,998 

  
 

20,800,202 
 Commonwealth government subsidies and grants  40,027  430,223 
 Other grants - Capital    3,064,698    40,000 
         12,075,723        21,270,424 
  

2020 accounting policy: 
    

 
Grant income under AASB 15 
Where grant income arises from an agreement which is enforceable and contains sufficiently specific performance 
obligations then the revenue is recognised when control of each performance obligations is satisfied. 

 
The performance obligations are varied based on the agreement but include events, disability support services, 
purchase of a property, plant and equipment, etc. Payment terms vary depending on the terms of the grant. Cash is 
received upfront for some grants and on the achievement of certain payment milestones for others. 

 
Each performance obligation is considered to ensure that the revenue recognition reflects the transfer of control and 
within grant agreements there may be some performance obligations where control transfers at a point in time and others 
which have continuous transfer of control over the life of the contract. 

 
Where control is transferred over time, generally the input methods being either costs or time incurred are deemed to be 
the most appropriate methods to reflect the transfer of benefit. 
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4 Grants, subsidies, contributions and donations (Continued) 

Grant income under AASB 1058 
Assets arising from grants in the scope of AASB 1058 are recognised at the asset's fair value when the asset is 
received. Council considers whether there are any related liability or equity items associated with the asset which are 
recognised in accordance with the relevant accounting standard. 

 
Once the assets and liabilities have been recognised then income is recognised for any remaining asset value at the 
time that the asset is received. 

 

Capital grants 
Capital grants received to enable Council to acquire or construct an item of property, plant and equipment to identified 
specifications which will be under Council’s control and which is enforceable are recognised as revenue as and when the 
obligation to construct or purchase is completed. 

 
For construction projects, this is generally as the construction progresses in accordance with costs incurred since this is 
deemed to be the most appropriate measure of the completeness of the construction project as there is no profit margin. 

 
Where assets are donated or purchased for significantly below fair value, the revenue is recognised when the asset is 
acquired and controlled by the Council. 

 

2019 accounting policy: 
Grants, subsidies and contributions that are non-reciprocal in nature are recognised as revenue in the year in which 
Council obtains control over them. 

Where grants are received that are reciprocal in nature, revenue is recognised as the various performance obligations 
under the funding agreement are fulfilled. 

 
Non-cash contributions with a value in excess of the recognition thresholds, are recognised as revenue and as non- 
current assets. Non-cash contributions below the thresholds are recorded as revenue and expenses. 

 
Physical assets contributed to Council by developers in the form of road works, stormwater, water and wastewater 
infrastructure and park equipment are recognised as revenue when the development becomes "on maintenance" (i.e. the 
Council obtains control of the assets and becomes liable for any ongoing maintenance) and there is sufficient data in the 
form of drawings and plans to determine the approximate specifications and values of such assets. All non-cash 
contributions are recognised at the fair value of the contribution received on the date of acquisition. 

 

(c) Conditions over grants 
Grants recognised as income during the reporting period and which were obtained on the condition that they be 
expended in a manner specified by the contributor but had not been expended at the reporting date: 

2020 2019 
Note $ $ 

Grants for expenditure on services 
Grants for expenditure on infrastructure 

 
  

1,330,397 1,192,038 
292,853 5,059,232 

  

  1,623,250   6,251,270 
 

5 Capital income 
 

Gain on disposal of non-current 
assets 
Proceeds from the sale of property, plant and equipment 
Less: Book value of property, plant and equipment disposed of 

 
 

93,636 - 
  -   -  
  93,636   -  

Total capital income   93,636   -  
  

 
6 Employee benefits 

 
Total staff wages and salaries 6,654,624 6,088,696 
Councillors' remuneration 332,803 320,015 
Annual, sick and long service leave entitlements 731,919 789,548 

Superannuation 20   799,765   708,843 
8,519,110 7,907,102 

Other employee related expenses   238,690 291,192 
  8,757,800 8,198,294 

 

 

Councillor remuneration represents salary, and other allowances paid in respect of carrying out their duties. 

 
Total Council employees at the reporting date:   2020    2019  
Elected members 5 5 
Administration staff 18 17 
Council and Community Services   80   80 
Total full time equivalent employees 103 102 
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   Restated 

2020  2019 
  Note $     $  

7 Materials and services    

 Audit of annual financial statements by the Auditor-General of 
Queensland* 

 
81,000 

  
147,957 

 Audit fees - other 34,517  86,020 
 Administration supplies and other 181,386  187,122 
 Bad debts written off -  19,883 
 Contractors and services providers 2,238,395  1,205,118 
 Grants refunded 28,269  7,718 
 Hire of plant and equipment (1,345)  36,424 
 Insurance 1,570,109  704,406 
 Other materials and services 2,971,604  1,806,663 
 Rates, taxes and utilities 604,706  683,282 
 Rent 41,155  103,477 
 Repairs and maintenance 144,367  487,367 
 Reversal of provision for doubtful debts (10,561)  - 
 Travel costs 107,110  279,883 
 Vehicle and plant operating costs 214,468  271,615 

  8,205,179  6,026,935 
     

 
Total audit fees quoted by the Queensland Audit Office relating to the 2019-20 financial statements are $81,000 (2019: 
$92,500) 

8 Capital expenses 
Loss on disposal of non-current assets 
Proceeds from the sale of property, plant and equipment - - 

 Less: Book value of property, plant and equipment disposed of 4,498,715  2,665,780 

 4,498,715  2,665,780 

 
 

  

Total capital expenses   4,498,715    2,665,780 
 
9 

 
Cash and cash equivalents 

   

 Cash at bank 8,933,832  10,466,159 
 Cash on hand 237,680  125,480 
 Deposits at call   1,452    1,429 
 Balance per Statement of Cash Flows 9,172,964  10,593,069 
     

 
Externally imposed expenditure restrictions at the reporting date 
relate to the following cash assets: 

   

 Unspent government grants and subsidies 7,429,300  6,251,270 
 Total unspent restricted cash   7,429,300    6,251,270 

 
Cash and cash equivalents in the statement of cash flows includes cash on hand, all cash and cheques receipted but not 
banked at the year end and deposits held at call with financial institutions. 

Deposits at call are held with the Queensland Treasury Corporation and are unconditionally guaranteed by the 
Queensland Government. 

10 Receivables 
Current 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Receivables are amounts owed to Council at year end. They are recognised at the amounts due at the time of sale or 
service delivery i.e. the agreed purchase price / contract price. Settlement of these amounts is required within 30 days 
from invoice date. 
All known bad debts were written-off at 30 June. The Council uses an allowance matrix to measure the expected credit 
losses of trade receivables from individual customers. 
No interest is charged on trade and other receivables. 

Trade debtors 646,975  1,974,822 
Less impairment (234,824)  (245,384) 
Accrued revenue 338,113  539,544 
GST receivable 27,830  - 
Prepayments   22,066    16,547 

   800,161    2,285,529 
Non-current    

Prepaid pastoral lease costs -  186,758 
Security deposits   17,500    17,500 

   17,500    204,258 
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10 Receivables (Continued) 

2020 2019 
Note $ $ 

  

 

Movement in accumulated impairment losses (other debtors) is as follows: 
Opening balance at 1 July 245,384 29,596 
Additional impairments (reversed) / recognised (10,561) 215,788 

  

Closing balance at 30 June   234,824   245,384 
Loss rates are based on actual credit loss experience over the past ten years. These rates are multiplied by scalar 
factors to reflect differences between economic conditions during the period over which the historical data has been 
collected, current conditions and the Council's view of economic conditions over the expected lives of the receivables. 

 
 
 

11 Inventories 
 
Inventories held for sale 

 

 Aviation fuel 81,920  54,026 
 Bakery 27,126  29,943 
 Blue Café 9,940  - 
 Power cards 6,227  17,291 
 Other trading stocks   19,232    15,387 
    144,445    116,647 

 Inventories held for distribution 
Diesel fuel 

 
15,553 

  
31,890 

 Plant and equipment stores 544,088  571,199 
 Batching plant   27,614    65,446 
    587,255    668,535 

 Impairment    

 Impairment   (54,778)    (52,056) 

 Total inventories   676,922    733,126 
 

Stores and raw materials held for resale are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value and include, where 
applicable, direct material, direct labour and an appropriate portion of variable and fixed overheads. Costs are assigned 
on the basis of weighted average cost. 

 

Inventories held for distribution are: 
- goods to be supplied at no or nominal charge, and 
- goods to be used for the provision of services at no or nominal charge. 
These goods are valued at cost, adjusted, when applicable, for any loss of service potential. 
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30 June 2020 Note 
 

Basis of measurement 
Fair value category 
Asset values 
Opening gross value as at 1 July 2019 
Additions 
- Renewals 
- Other additions 
Disposals 8 
Revaluation adjustment to asset revaluation surplus 
Write-off of work in progress 
Closing gross value as at 30 June 2020 

 
Accumulated depreciation and impairment 
Opening balance as at 1 July 2019 
Depreciation provided in period 
Depreciation on disposals 8 
Revaluation adjustment to asset revaluation surplus 
Accumulated depreciation as at 30 June 2020 

 
Total written down value as at 30 June 2020 
Range of estimated useful life in years 

 
Asset revaluation surplus 

 
Opening balance 1 July 2019 
Asset revaluation movement - Revaluation 
Closing balance 30 June 2020 

Buildings Residential 
housing 

Plant & 
equipment 

Motor vehicles 
and heavy 

Furniture and 
fittings 

Roads, drainage 
and culverts 

Water Sewerage Other 
infrastructure 

Work in 
progress 

Total 

Fair Value Fair Value Cost Cost Cost Fair Value Fair Value Fair Value Fair Value Cost  

Level 3 Level 3    Level 3 Level 3 Level 3 Level 3   

$ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ 
37,655,657 106,180,699 2,763,782 2,441,323 470,493 102,595,931 8,397,899 7,905,947 11,037,571 3,592,402 283,041,705 

- - - - - - - - - 13,713,010 13,713,010 
31,814 2,900,252 - - - 4,713,804 - - - (7,645,870) - 

4,110,081 - 45,364 291,523 - 209,547 - - - (4,656,514) - 
(1,039,376) (3,178,829) - (127,957) - (4,713,803) (18,128) (130,303) (544,422) - (9,752,820) 

892,014 (10,341,742) - - - 11,173,902 114,109 1,810,896 3,369,151 - 7,018,331 
- - - - - - - - - (196,872) (196,872) 

41,650,190 95,560,380 2,809,145 2,604,889 470,493 113,979,381 8,493,880 9,586,540 13,862,300 4,806,157 293,823,354 
 

21,381,290 53,570,045 2,026,579 1,298,245 470,488 47,020,928 3,425,768 5,151,504 4,670,811 - 139,015,659 
1,076,478 3,636,880 223,952 221,440 5 1,567,293 248,670 342,126 216,062 - 7,532,906 
(480,635) (1,460,338) - (127,957) - (2,928,629) (18,128) (69,937) (168,480) - (5,254,105) 

(2,609,375) (15,069,908) - - - 5,621,720 (498,745) 561,420 (1,757,769) - (13,752,658) 
19,367,757 40,676,679 2,250,531 1,391,728 470,493 51,281,313 3,157,564 5,985,113 2,960,625 - 127,541,803 

 
22,282,433 54,883,701 558,614 1,213,161 0 62,698,068 5,336,315 3,601,427 10,901,675 4,806,157 166,281,551 

1-48 2 - 43 0-30 0 - 10 0 0 - 99 4 - 54 0 - 38 3 - 145   

 

$ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ 
20,302,748 41,299,898 - - - 12,628,095 1,417,625 410,476 1,296,342 - 77,355,184 

3,501,390 4,728,167 - - - 5,552,182 612,854 1,249,476 5,126,920 - 20,770,989 
23,804,138 46,028,065 - - - 18,180,277 2,030,480 1,659,952 6,423,262 - 98,126,173 
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30 June 2019 Note 

 
 

Basis of measurement 
Fair value category 
Asset values 
Opening gross value as at 1 July 2018 
Additions 
Disposals 8 
Revaluation adjustment to asset revaluation surplus 
Reclassification of previous impairment adjustment 
Closing gross value as at 30 June 2019 

 
Accumulated depreciation and impairment 

 
Opening balance as at 1 July 2018 
Adjustment to opening accumulated depreciation 

Depreciation provided in period 
Depreciation on disposals 8 

Revaluation adjustment to asset revaluation surplus 

Reclassification of previous impairment adjustment 
Accumulated depreciation as at 30 June 2019 

 
Total written down value as at 30 June 2019 
Range of estimated useful life in years 

 
Asset revaluation surplus 

 
Opening balance 1 July 2018 
Asset revaluation movement - Revaluation 
Closing balance 30 June 2019 

Buildings Residential 
housing 

Plant & 
equipment 

Motor vehicles 
and heavy 
equipment 

Furniture and 
fittings 

Roads, drainage 
and culverts 

Water Sewerage Other 
infrastructure 

assets 

Work in 
progress 

Total 

Fair Value Fair Value Cost Cost Cost Fair Value Fair Value Fair Value Fair Value Cost  

Level 3 Level 3    Level 3 Level 3 Level 3 Level 3   
$ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ 

38,670,888 104,766,353 2,713,287 1,304,682 470,493 89,660,962 7,868,462 7,713,119 10,768,362 1,632,112 265,568,721 
297,309 3,164,000 50,495 1,243,543 - 13,478,021 332,725 - - 1,960,290 20,526,382 

(1,834,597) (3,164,000) - (106,901) - - - - - - (5,105,498) 
522,057 1,414,346 - - - 2,476,669 196,712 192,828 269,209 - 5,071,821 

- - - - - (3,019,720) - - - - (3,019,720) 
37,655,657 106,180,699 2,763,782 2,441,323 470,493 102,595,931 8,397,899 7,905,947 11,037,571 3,592,402 283,041,704 

 

20,849,143 51,200,369 1,776,470 1,082,476 436,683 47,207,119 3,106,118 4,690,650 4,345,035 - 134,694,063 
- (383,879) - - - - - - - - (383,879) 

1,066,941 3,596,003 250,109 229,743 33,805 1,431,277 236,633 335,208 211,854 - 7,391,573 

(843,744) (1,582,000) - (13,974) - - - - - - (2,439,718) 
308,950 739,552 - - - 1,402,253 83,017 125,646 113,923 - 2,773,341 

- - - - - (3,019,720) - - - - (3,019,720) 
21,381,290 53,570,045 2,026,579 1,298,245 470,488 47,020,928 3,425,768 5,151,504 4,670,811 - 139,015,659 

 
16,274,367 52,610,654 737,202 1,143,078 5 55,575,003 4,972,131 2,754,443 6,366,760 3,592,402 144,026,045 

10 - 75 12 - 50 3 - 50 3 - 10 4 - 8 15 - 100 4 - 60 12 - 40 15 - 150   

 

$ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ 
20,089,642 40,625,104 - - - 11,553,679 1,303,930 343,294 1,141,056 - 75,056,704 

213,107 674,794 - - - 1,074,416 113,695 67,182 155,287 - 2,298,480 
20,302,748 41,299,898 - - - 12,628,095 1,417,625 410,476 1,296,342 - 77,355,184 
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Each class of property, plant and equipment is stated at cost or fair value less, where applicable, any accumulated depreciation 
and accumulated impairment loss. Items of property, plant and equipment with a total value of less than $5,000 are treated as 
an expense in the year of acquisition. All other items of property, plant and equipment are capitalised. 

 

The classes of property, plant and equipment recognised by the Council are: 

Buildings 
Residential housing 
Plant and equipment 
Motor vehicles and heavy equipment 
Furniture and fittings 
Infrastructure:- 

Roads, drainage and culverts 
Water 
Sewerage 

Other infrastructure assets 
Work in progress 

 
Acquisition of assets 
Acquisitions of assets are initially recorded at cost. Cost is determined as the fair value of the assets given as consideration 
plus costs incidental to the acquisition, including freight in, architect's fees and engineering design fees and all other 
establishment costs. 

 
Property, plant and equipment received in the form of contributions, are recognised as assets and revenues at fair value by 
Council valuation where that value exceeds the recognition thresholds for the respective asset class. Fair value means the 
price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants 
at the measurement date. 

 

Capital and operating expenditure 

Direct labour and materials and an appropriate proportion of overheads incurred in the acquisition or construction of assets are 
treated as capital expenditure. Assets under construction are not depreciated until they are completed and commissioned, at 
which time they are reclassified from work in progress to the appropriate class of property, plant and equipment. 

 

Valuation 
 

Buildings, residential housing and all infrastructure assets are measured on the revaluation basis, at fair value, in accordance 
with AASB 116 Property, Plant & Equipment and AASB 13 Fair Value Measurement . Other plant and equipment, motor 
vehicles and heavy equipment, furniture and fittings and work in progress are measured at cost. 

 
Non-current physical assets measured at fair value are revalued, where required, so that the carrying amount of each class of 
asset does not materially differ from its fair value at the reporting date. This is achieved by engaging independent, 
professionally qualified valuers to determine the fair value for each class of buildings, residential housing and infrastructure 
assets at least once every 3 years. This process involves the valuer physically sighting a representative sample of Council 
assets across all asset classes and making their own assessments of the condition of the assets at the date of inspection. 

 

In the intervening years, Council engages independent, professionally qualified valuers to perform a desktop valuation. A 
desktop valuation involves management providing updated information to the valuer regarding additions, deletions and 
changes in assumptions such as useful life and condition rating. The valuer then determines suitable indices which are applied 
to each of these asset classes. 

 

Any revaluation increment arising on the revaluation of an asset is credited to the appropriate class of the asset revaluation 
surplus, except to the extent it reverses a revaluation decrement for the class previously recognised as an expense. A 
decrease in the carrying amount on revaluation is charged as an expense to the extent it exceeds the balance, if any, in the 
revaluation surplus of that asset class. 

 
On revaluation, accumulated depreciation is restated proportionately with the change in the carrying amount of the asset and 
any change in the estimate of remaining useful life. 

 

When an asset is disposed of, the amount reported in surplus in respect of that asset is retained in the asset revaluation 
surplus and not transferred to retained surplus. 
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Separately identified components of assets are measured on the same basis as the assets to which they relate. 

 

Capital work in progress 
The cost of property, plant and equipment being constructed by the Council includes the cost of purchased services, materials, 
direct labour and an appropriate proportion of labour overheads. 

 
Depreciation 
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment assets is calculated on a straight-line basis so as to write-off the net cost or 
revalued amount of each depreciable asset progressively over its estimated useful life to the Council. Management believe that 
the straight-line basis appropriately reflects the pattern of consumption of all Council assets. 

 

Assets are depreciated from the date of acquisition or, in respect of internally constructed assets, from the time an asset is 
completed and commissioned ready for use. 

 

Depreciation methods and estimated useful lives of property, plant and equipment assets are reviewed at the end of each 
reporting period and adjusted where necessary to reflect any changes in the pattern of consumption, physical wear and tear, 
technical or commercial obsolescence, or management intentions. The condition assessments performed as part of the annual 
valuation process for assets measured at written down current replacement cost are used to estimate the remaining useful 
lives of these assets at each reporting date. 

 

Deed of Grant in Trust Land 

The Council is located on land assigned to it under a Deed of Grant in Trust (DOGIT) under Section 34I of the Land Act 1994 . 
It comprises an area of approximately 252,000 hectares. 

 
The land is administered by the Department of Natural Resources and Mines and the Council has restricted use of this land for 
the benefit of shire inhabitants. The DOGIT land has not been taken up in the Council's assets as it cannot be reliably 
measured. 

A portion of the DOGIT land (2,477 m2) is leased to the State Government pursuant to the Indigenous Housing Arrangement 
(40 year lease). 

Impairment of non-current assets 

Property, plant and equipment is assessed for indicators of impairment annually. If an indicator of possible impairment exists, 
the Council determines the asset's recoverable amount. Any amount by which the asset's carrying amount exceeds the 
recoverable amount is recorded as an impairment loss. The recoverable amount of an asset is the higher of its fair value less 
costs to sell and its value in use. 

 
An impairment loss is recognised as an expense in the Statement of Comprehensive Income, unless the asset is carried at a 
revalued amount. When the asset is measured at a revalued amount, the impairment loss is offset against the asset 
revaluation surplus of the relevant class to the extent available. 

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset is increased to the revised estimate of its 
recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been 
determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is 
recognised as income unless the asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case the reversal of the impairment loss is 
treated as a revaluation surplus increase. 
Asset revaluation surplus 

 

The asset revaluation surplus comprises adjustments relating to changes in value of property, plant and equipment that do not 
result from the use of those assets. Net incremental changes in the carrying value of classes of non-current assets since their 
initial recognition are accumulated in the asset revaluation surplus. Increases and decreases on revaluation are offset within a 
class of assets. When an asset is disposed of, the amount reported in surplus in respect of that asset is retained in the asset 
revaluation surplus and not transferred to retained surplus. 

 

Where a class of assets is decreased on revaluation, that decrease is offset first against the amount remaining in the asset 
revaluation surplus in respect of that class. Any excess is treated as an expense. 

Key judgments and estimates: 
 
 
Straight line depreciation is used as that is consistent with the even consumption of service potential of these assets over their 
useful life to the Council. 
 
Management reviews its estimate of the useful lives of depreciable assets at each reporting date, based on the expected utility 
of the assets. Uncertainties in these estimates relate to technical obsolescence that may change the utility of certain software 
and IT equipment. 
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Fair value measurement 
(i) Recognised fair value measurements 

 
In accordance with AASB 13 fair value measurements are categorised on the following basis: 

- Fair value based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (level 1) 

- Fair value based on inputs that are directly or indirectly observable for the asset or liability (level 2) 

- Fair value based on unobservable inputs for the asset and liability (level 3) 
 

The fair values of the assets are determined using valuation techniques which maximise the use of observable data, where it is available, 
and minimise the use of entity specific estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair value an asset are observable, the asset is 
included in level 2. If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the asset is included in level 3. This is 
the case for Council buildings and infrastructure assets, which are of a specialist nature for which there is no active market for similar or 
identical assets. These assets are valued using a combination of observable and unobservable inputs. 

 
Accordingly all Council assets included in property, plant and equipment classes shown at fair value are categorised as level 3 (2019: 
100% level 3). There were no transfers between categories during the year (2019: Nil). Council's policy is to recognise transfers in and out 
of the fair value hierarchy as at the end of the reporting period. 

(ii) Valuation techniques used to derive fair values 

Buildings and residential housing (level 3) 

The fair value of buildings and residential housing has been derived from a comprehensive revaluation performed by Jones Lang LaSalle 
(JLL) as at 30 June 2020. Desktop valuations were performed by Jones Lang LaSalle (JLL) for the year ended 30 June 2019. 

 
 

Council's buildings are of a specialist nature and there is no active market as they are held to provide essential services to the community. 
The majority of building and other structure asset values have been based on the current replacement cost method of valuation. This 
involves determining a replacement cost for the asset and making an assessment on the condition, age and remaining life of the asset. 

Replacement costs are determined by using Rawlinson’s Australian Construction Handbook. This guide outlines construction costs for a 
wide range of assets and locations. Construction costs are based on published construction cost guides and construction costs provided 
by the Department of Housing and Public Works of homes built within remote communities in recent years. Considerations in the 
calculations have been the type and the size of the structure, construction materials used, level of finish, fixtures installed within, and the 
location of the asset. Where buildings in the Kowanyama Shire have recently been constructed, the construction cost has also been taken 
into consideration. Rawlinson’s Construction Handbook provides capital city replacement cost rates and regional loading percentages. 

 
Usually residential housing would be assessed on the direct comparison market approach (level 2), however this is for areas where there 
is an active market. Given the ownership structure of the land (DOGIT), there are no property sale transactions in the Kowanyama area or 
surrounding communities. All buildings in the Kowanyama Council area have therefore been assessed on a level 3 basis. 
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Infrastructure assets (level 3) 

The fair value of infrastructure assets has been derived from a comprehensive revaluation performed by Jones Lang LaSalle (JLL) as at 
30 June 2020. Desktop valuations were performed by Jones Lang LaSalle (JLL) for the year ended 30 June 2019. 

 
All Council infrastructure assets were fair valued using written down current replacement cost. This valuation comprises the asset's current 
replacement cost (CRC) less accumulated depreciation calculated on the basis of such cost to reflect the already consumed or expired 
future economic benefits of the asset. Council first determined the gross cost of replacing the full service potential of the asset and then 
adjusted this amount to take account of the expired service potential of the asset. 

 
CRC was measured by reference to the lowest cost at which the gross future economic benefits of the asset could currently be obtained in 
the normal course of business. Where existing assets were over designed, had excess capacity, or were redundant an adjustment was 
made so that the resulting valuation reflected the cost of replacing the existing economic benefits based on an efficient set of modern 
equivalent assets to achieve the required level of service output within the Council's planning horizon. 

 
There is no market for Council's infrastructure assets as these are held to provide essential services to the community. For the purpose of 
assessing the fair value for financial reporting purposes value has been determined primarily by using the written down current 
replacement cost methodology. Considerations in the calculations have been the type and the size of the individual infrastructure assets, 
construction materials used, level of finish, fixtures installed within, and the location of the assets. As the subject assets are located in a 
regional area, somewhat removed from the nearest provincial city of Cairns, and far removed from Queensland’s capital city of Brisbane, a 
cost increase over and above that applicable to the nearest provincial city or in relation to a Brisbane cost index is necessary to account 
for the increase in replacement cost due to transportation of labour and materials from the nearest supply centre, and also the cost of 
specialised labour and contractors necessary for the construction work. 

Unit rates have been developed by summing each component which goes into producing a unit (be it metres, square metres, tonnes, etc.) 
of an asset. The major components of any asset are the raw materials, plant, labour and intangibles. These unit costs have then been 
applied to known measurements of the assets to produce a replacement cost, which is then depreciated to estimate the fair value. 

The road network has been segmented into individually significant components. Unit rates are applied to the individual road components 
base, pavement, surface and kerb of each road in order to determine the replacement cost. 

The unit rates applied are based on greenfield project costs and include all materials, labour and overheads. These unit rates are 
estimated using information collated from similar recent project costs, unit rate databases, Rawlinson's Construction Handbook and 
quotations. 
The cost of raw material, as well as plant and labour hire rates, are established either through communicating directly with suppliers and 
obtaining quoted prices, by using cost guides such as the Rawlinsons Construction Handbook and through reviewing prices supplied by 
Council. Intangibles are estimated using industry standards as a starting point; these rates are then tailored to suit Council's 
circumstances. 
In relation to the assessment of the estimation of the remaining useful life of each structure it is considered that the calculations should be 
done on the basis of the overall structure, with individual components being separately assessed for remaining useful life. This is due to 
the nature of the structures whereby it is considered that the different identifiable construction components making up the total structure 
would not depreciate at the same rate per annum or have the same overall total life expectancy. 

 
Ideally, where both the condition and age of the asset are known, these two inputs are used in conjunction to determine the appropriate 
level of accumulated depreciation. If the asset is determined to be in an “average” condition for its age, the calculation reverts to the 
construction year. However if the asset is found to be in better or worse condition for its age, the remaining life is adjusted accordingly. 

To accurately assess the value of the infrastructure assets, the valuer or relevant consultants carried out an inspection of the assets 
(where practical), calculated the size of each asset, and recorded structural details. The general condition, total life expectancy and actual 
residual life expectancy for the infrastructure assets have also been established as a result of the inspections carried out. For those assets 
where an inspection was not possible (mainly underground water and sewerage infrastructure) a revaluation was carried out on the basis 
of the age of the asset with guidance from Council staff in relation to recent repairs, capital works, and surrounding environmental 
infrastructure. 
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Roads, drainage and culverts (level 3) 
As detailed above, Council's roads and drainage network has been valued using written down current replacement cost. This method 
utilises a number of inputs that require judgement and are therefore classed as unobservable. While these judgements are made with the 
greatest care, and based upon past experience, different judgements could result in a different valuation. 

Water and sewerage (level 3) 
The fair value of water and sewerage assets has been derived from a comprehensive revaluation performed by Jones Lang LaSalle (JLL) 
as at 30 June 2020. Desktop valuations were performed by Jones Lang LaSalle (JLL) for the year ended 30 June 2019. 

 
The water and sewerage assets were segregated into active and passive assets; passive assets were not further componentised and 
consist primarily of mains. Unit rates were applied based on similar recent project costs from other entities, unit rate databases, indices, 
Rawlinson's Construction rates and quotations. 
The remaining active assets consist of treatment, pumping and storage assets. These assets were componentised and valued 
independently, with allowances for complexity, size, function and site factors. 

Current replacement cost for water and sewerage was calculated based on expected replacement costs. In all cases the assets were 
disaggregated to component level to ensure a reliable measure of cost and service capacity and deterioration of estimated remaining life. 

 
Consistent with roads, it is assumed that environmental factors such as soil type, climate and topography are consistent across each 
segment and that a segment is designed and constructed to the same standard and uses a consistent amount of labour and materials. 
Where assets are located underground and physical inspection is not possible, the age, size and type of construction material, together 
with current and planned maintenance records are used to determine the fair value at reporting date. 

The method used to value Council's water and sewerage assets utilises a number of inputs that require judgement and are therefore 
classed as unobservable. While these judgements are made with the greatest care, and based upon years of experience, different 
judgements could result in a different valuation. 

 

Other infrastructure assets (level 3) 
The replacement cost of all assets which as a group represent other infrastructure assets has been estimated through first principles, 
namely summing together the costs of materials, labour and overheads which were established through contact with suppliers, Council 
and having reference to recently constructed project costs and publicly available reference material, having regard to the location and 
condition. 
The method used to value Council's other infrastructure assets utilises a number of inputs that require judgement and are therefore 
classed as unobservable. While these judgements are made with the greatest care, and based upon years of experience, different 
judgements could result in a different valuation. 

(iii) Valuation processes 

Council's valuation policies and procedures are set by the executive management team. They are reviewed annually taking into 
consideration an analysis of movements in fair value and other relevant information. 
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13 Contract balances 
 

Where the amounts billed to customers are based on the achievement of various milestones established in the contract, the amounts 
recognised as revenue in a given period do not necessarily coincide with the amounts billed to or certified by the customer. 

 
When a performance obligation is satisfied by transferring a promised good or service to the customer before the customer pays 
consideration or before payment is due, Council presents the work in progress as a contract asset, unless the rights to that amount of 
consideration are unconditional, in which case Council recognises a receivable. 

 
When an amount of consideration is received from a customer / fund provider prior to Council transferring a good or service to the customer, 
Council presents the funds which exceed revenue recognised as a contract liability. 

 

2020 
  $  

a Contract assets   1,676,047 
 

 
b Contract liabilities 

Funds received upfront to construct Council controlled assets   5,806,050 
  5,806,050 

 

 
Current contract liabilities 5,806,050 
Non-current contract liabilities   -  

  5,806,050 
 

 
Revenue recognised that was included in the contract liability balance at the beginning of the year 
Funds to construct Council controlled assets   4,690,851 

  4,690,851 
 

c Significant changes in contract balances 
 

The contract assets and liabilities have arisen on adoption of AASB 15 and AASB 1058. Previously the revenue was recognised on receipt 
and therefore there was no effect on the statement of financial position. 

 

14 Leases 
 

Council as a lessee 
 

Council has a lease in place over one building. Council has applied the exception to lease accounting for leases of low-value assets and 
short-term leases. 

 
Where Council assesses that an agreement contains a lease, a right of use asset and lease liability is recognised on inception of the lease. 
Council does not separate lease and non-lease components for any class of assets and has accounted for lease payments as a single 
component. 

 
The right-of-use asset is measured using the cost model where cost on initial recognition comprises: the lease liability, initial direct costs, 
prepaid lease payments, estimated cost of removal and restoration, less any lease incentives received. The right-of-use asset is depreciated 
over the lease term on a straight-line basis and assessed for impairment in accordance with the impairment of asset accounting policy. 

 
 

The lease liability is initially recognised at the present value of the remaining lease payments at the commencement of the lease. The 
discount rate is the rate implicit in the lease, however where this cannot be readily determined then the Council’s incremental borrowing rate 
for a similar term with similar security is used. 
Council has two pastoral leases for Oriners - Crown Plan CTH804427 Lot 29 expiring on 31 December 2049 and Seftons- Crown Plan 
CTH804427 - Lot12 expiring 31 December 2055. These leases are amortised over the term of the lease. 

Terms and conditions of leases 
Building 
Council leases one building which is used for offices and storage. The lease is for 7 years and contains a renewal option which is considered 
reasonably certain to be exercised at Council's discretion. 
Council has two pastoral leases for Oriners - Crown Plan CTH804427 Lot 29 expiring on 31 December 2049 and Seftons- Crown Plan 
CTH804427 - Lot12 expiring 31 December 2055. These leases are amortised over the term of the lease. 

The lease includes a fixed annual increase and is subject to annual CPI increases. 
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Right of use assets 
 Pastoral 

Leases 
Building - 

Office Space 
Total 

 
Adoption of AASB 16 as at 1 July 2019 

  $  
186,758 

  $  
502,885 

  $  
689,643 

Adjustments to right-of-use assets due - 2,952 2,952 
to remeasurement of lease liability 
Depreciation/Amortisation charge 

 
  (5,600) 

 
  (67,274) 

 
  (72,874) 

Balance as at 30 June 2020   181,158   438,563   619,721 
   

 
Lease liabilities 
The table below shows the maturity analysis of the lease liabilities based on contractual cashflows and therefore the amounts will not be the 
same as the recognised lease liability in the statement of financial position. 

 
< 1 year 1 to 5 years > 5 years Total Total per 

statement of 
financial position 

 
  $ $ $  

 
$ 

($) 
  $  

  74,158 383,931 52,786 510,875   471,077 
 
Amounts included in the statement of comprehensive income related to leases 

  

    $  

Interest on lease liabilities  9,892 
Depreciation of right of use assets    67,274 

    77,166 
   

Total cash outflows for leases    72,896 
 

Council as a lessor 
When Council is a lessor, the lease is classified as either an operating or finance lease at inception date, based on whether substantially all 
of the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of the asset have been transferred to the lessee. If the risks and rewards have been 
transferred then the lease is classified as a finance lease, otherwise it is an operating lease. 

 
If the lease contains lease and non-lease components the non-lease components are accounted for in accordance with AASB 15 Revenue 
from Contracts with Customers. 

 

The lease income is recognised on a straight-line basis over the lease term. 
 

Finance lease: 
Leases of property under which the Council as lessor transfers substantially all the risks and benefits incidental to the ownership of the asset, 
but not the legal ownership, are classified as finance leases. 

 
Council has leased 66 (2019: 66) dwellings as lessor to the Queensland Government for 40 years. The total lease payment per dwelling in 
the current year was $3,297 (2019:$3,247) for 6 properties under a first lease agreement entered into in 2010/11, $3,117 (2019: $3,070) for 
32 properties under a second lease agreement entered into in 2013/14 and $2,868 (2019: $2,802) for 28 properties under a third lease 
agreement entered into in 2017/18. These lease payments are required to be adjusted each year by the change in the Consumer Price Index 
(All Groups) for Brisbane. As the gross lease payments are insufficient to cover the fair value (depreciated replacement cost) of the leased 
properties, there is no interest rate implicit in the leases and therefore no finance income will arise from the leases. Consequently, the leases 
are recognised at the present value of the expected future lease payments receivable (fair value). 
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2020 2019 

  Note $ $  
Lease receivables- current 
Finance leases 

 
  203,500 

  
  199,822 

   203,500    199,822 
 
Lease receivables - non-current 
Finance leases 

 
 

5,197,973 

  
 

5,651,903 
   5,197,973    5,651,903 
 
A reconciliation between the gross investment in the lease and the fair value of lease payments is as 
follows: 

   

Gross minimum lease payments receivable: 
Not later than one year 

 
203,500 

  
199,822 

Later than one year but not later than five years 814,000  799,289 
Later than five years   6,033,456    6,124,240 
 7,050,956  7,123,352 

Add: Estimated contingent rent 3,387,477  4,193,622 
Less: Present value adjustment   (5,036,961)    (5,465,248) 
Fair value of lease payments   5,401,473    5,851,726 
 
The fair value of lease payments is receivable as follows: 
Not later than one year 

 
 

203,500 

  
 

199,822 
Later than one year but not later than five years 781,059  776,268 
Later than five years   4,416,914    4,875,636 

   5,401,473    5,851,726 

 
 
 

Movements in finance leases were as follows:  

Opening balance 5,851,726 5,734,455 
Less: Lease receipts (199,822) (196,845) 
Add: (Loss) / gain on revaluation   (250,430)   314,116 
Closing balance   5,401,473   5,851,726 

  

 
Whilst the lease payment amounts are documented in the lease agreements (level 2), the calculation of the fair value of these assets is at the 
net present value incorporating an average annual CPI increase and discount rate which are both unobservable inputs (level 3). It is 
considered that these other inputs are significant to the valuation therefore the overall valuation has been classified as level 3. 

 
Finance leases are recognised at the present value of the expected future lease payments receivable (fair value). 

 
The calculation of fair value has included an estimate of average annual CPI increases of 2.2% (2019: 2.5%) and a discount rate of 3.91% 
(2019: 3.71%). 

 
Finance leases are to the State of Queensland, represented by the Department of Housing and Public Works. The likelihood of this 
counterparty not having capacity to meet its financial commitments is considered low. 
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Movements on revaluation of finance lease assets are recognised as other income/expenses. 

 
Rent from Council's building assets is recognised as income on a periodic straight line basis over the lease term. 

 

2020 
  $  

Property income (excluding variable lease payments not dependent on an index or rate) 59,917 
Property income relating to variable lease payments not dependent on an index or rate - 
Direct operating expenses from property that generated rental income - 

 
There is nil unearned finance income, unguaranteed residual values accruing to the benefit of Council or accumulated allowance for 
uncollectible minimum lease payments receivable recognised as income applicable to the leases. 

 
15 Payables 

 
2020 2019 

Current  Note $ $  
Creditors and accruals 2,049,539 2,060,054 
Annual leave 523,675 433,973 
Time off in lieu of overtime (TOIL) 156,002 19,213 
Other payables 26,407 45,291 
Security deposit   51,045   83,699 
   2,806,668   2,642,230 

  

 
Creditors are recognised upon receipt of the goods or services ordered and are measured at the agreed purchase/contract price net of 
applicable discounts other than contingent discounts. Amounts owing are unsecured and are generally settled on 30 day terms. 

 
Salaries and wages 
A liability for salaries and wages is recognised and measured as the amount unpaid at the reporting date at current pay rates in respect of 
employees' services up to that date. This liability represents an accrued expense and is reported as a payable. 

 
Annual leave 
A liability for annual leave is recognised. Amounts expected to be settled within 12 months are calculated on current wage and salary levels 
and include related employee on-costs. Amounts not expected to be settled within 12 months are calculated on projected future wage and 
salary levels and related employee on-costs, and are discounted to present values, if considered material. As Council does not have an 
unconditional right to defer this liability beyond 12 months annual leave is classified as a current liability. This liability represents an accrued 
expense and is reported as a payable. 
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16 Provisions  

Note 
2020 

$ 
 2019 

$ 
 Current     
 Landfill restoration  -  2,423,418 
 Long service leave  176,054  222,950 
     176,054    2,646,368 
 Non-current     

 Landfill restoration  2,924,315  404,311 
 Long service leave  99,052  81,671 
     3,023,367    485,982 
 Long service leave     

 Balance at beginning of financial year  304,621  200,487 
 Long service leave entitlement arising  9,641  131,999 
 Long service entitlement extinguished  (7,950)  (16,988) 
 Long service entitlement paid  (31,206)  (10,877) 
 Balance at end of financial year  275,106  304,621 
 Landfill restoration     
 Balance at beginning of financial year  2,827,729  484,084 
 Initial recognition during the year  -  2,343,645 
 Increase (decrease) in provision due to change in discount rate or unit cost  96,586  - 
 Balance at end of financial year    2,924,315    2,827,729 

 

Landfill restoration provision 

A provision is made for the cost of rehabilitation of assets and other future restoration costs where it is probable Council will be liable, or 
required, to incur costs on the cessation of use of these facilities. 

The provision represents the present value of the anticipated future costs associated with the closure of landfill sites in accordance with 
environmental licence conditions. The calculation of this provision requires assumptions such as application of environmental legislation, site 
closure dates, available technologies and engineering cost estimates. These uncertainties may result in future actual expenditure differing 
from amounts currently provided. Because of the long-term nature of the liability, the most significant uncertainty in estimating the provision is 
the costs that will be incurred. The provision recognised for landfill sites is reviewed at least annually and updated based on the facts, 
estimates and circumstances available at the time. 
The expected closure date of the current landfill site has been assessed as at 30 June 2022 therefore moving the provision to a non-current 
liability. 

The total projected cost of $2,875,918 is expected to be incurred between 2022 and 2050. The figure excludes rehabilitating landfill cells on 
existing sites that are yet to be constructed or used, but which are in the current site plan. 

 

Long service leave 
A liability for long service leave is measured as the present value of the estimated future cash outflows to be made in respect of services 
provided by employees up to the reporting date. The value of the liability is calculated using current pay rates and projected future increases 
in those rates and includes related employee on-costs. The estimates are adjusted for the probability of the employee remaining in the 
Council's employment or other associated employment which would result in the Council being required to meet the liability. Adjustments are 
then made to allow for the proportion of the benefit earned to date, and the result is discounted to present value. The interest rates attaching 
to Commonwealth Government guaranteed securities at the reporting date are used to discount the estimated future cash outflows to their 
present value. 

Where employees have met the prerequisite length of service and Council does not have an unconditional right to defer this liability beyond 
12 months, long service leave is classified as a current liability. Otherwise it is classified as non-current. 
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17 Borrowings 2020 2019 
  Note $ $  

Current 
Loans - Queensland Treasury Corporation 

 
129,150 

  
125,593 

   129,150    125,593 
 
Non Current 
Loans - Queensland Treasury Corporation 

 
 
  1,512,687 

  
 
  1,641,981 

   1,512,687    1,641,981 
 
Loans - Queensland Treasury 

   

Opening balance at beginning of financial year 1,767,574  1,889,846 
Principal repayments   (125,736)    (122,272) 
Book value at end of financial year   1,641,837    1,767,574 

 
The QTC loan market value at the reporting date was $1,780,886. This represents the value of the debt if Council repaid it at that date. 

 
Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value plus any directly attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition these 
liabilities are measured at amortised cost. 

 

In accordance with the Local Government Regulation 2012 Council adopts an annual debt policy that sets out Council's planned borrowings 
for the next nine years. Council's current policy is to only borrow for capital projects and for a term no longer than the expected life of the 
asset. Council also aims to comply with the Queensland Treasury Corporation's borrowing guidelines and ensure that sustainability indicators 
remain within acceptable levels at all times. All borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are incurred. No borrowing costs 
are capitalised on qualifying assets. 

 
18 Commitments for expenditure 

 
Operating leases (2019 only) 
Minimum lease payments in relation to non-cancellable operating leases are 
as follows: 
Within one year 74,157 
One to five years   133,383 

  207,539 
 

Contractual commitments 
Contractual commitments at the end of the financial year but not recognised in the financial statements are as follows: 
Within one year   634,914   1,128,558 

  634,914   1,128,558 
  

 

Capital commitments relate to scheduled capital projects and construction. 
 

19 Contingent liabilities 
 

Local Government Workcare 
The Council is a member of the Queensland local government worker's compensation self-insurance scheme, Local Government Workcare. 
Under this scheme the Council has provided an indemnity towards a bank guarantee to cover bad debts which may remain should the self 
insurance licence be cancelled and there was insufficient funds available to cover outstanding liabilities. Only the Queensland Government’s 
workers compensation authority may call on any part of the guarantee should the above circumstances arise. At 30 June 2020 the Council's 
maximum exposure to the bank guarantee is $196,295 (2019: $154,095). 
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20 Superannuation 
 

Council contributes to the LGIAsuper previously known as Local Government Superannuation Scheme (Qld) (the scheme). LGIAsuper is a 
Multiemployer Plan as defined in Australian Accounting Standard AASB 119 Employee Benefits. The scheme has a number of elements 
including defined benefits funds and an accumulated benefits fund. Council does not have any employees who are members of the defined 
benefits funds and so is not exposed to the obligations, assets or costs associated with these funds. Council has employees who are 
members of the accumulated benefits fund. 

 
2020 2019 

  Note $ $  
Superannuation contributions made to the LGIA Accumulated Benefits Fund  

 
Other superannuation contributions to other Accumulated Benefits Funds 

550,010  569,483 

 249,754  139,360 
Total superannuation contributions paid by Council for employees: 6  799,765    708,843 

 
The superannuation expense for the reporting period is the amount of the contribution the Council makes to the superannuation plan which 
provides benefits to its employees. 

 

21 Reconciliation of net result for the year to net cash inflow (outflow) from operating activities 
 

2020 2019 
  Note $   $  

Net result (1,931,929) 10,319,464 
Non-cash items: 

Depreciation and amortisation - property, plant and equipment 12 7,532,906 7,391,573 
Depreciation and amortisation - right of use assets 14 72,874 - 
Reversal of impairment of trade and other receivables 10 (10,560) 215,788 

Interest on lease liabilities 14 9,892 - 
Revenue recognised that was included in the contract 13 (4,690,851) - 

liability balance at the beginning of the year    
 Loss/(gain) on revaluation of finance leases  14   250,430    (314,116) 
 

I 
 
nvesting and development activities: 

    3,164,691    7,293,246 

 Net loss on disposal of non-current assets  8 4,498,715  2,665,780 
 Capital grants and contributions  4(b)   (12,075,723)    (21,270,424) 
 

Changes in operating assets and liabilities: 
    (7,577,008)    (18,604,644) 

 (Increase) / decrease in receivables   1,672,126  (324,325) 
 (Increase) / decrease in contract assets   (1,676,047)  - 
 (Increase) / decrease in inventory   56,204  (197,475) 
 (Increase) / decrease in lease receivables   450,253  - 
 (Increase) / decrease in other assets   (619,721)  - 
 Increase/(decrease) in payables   166,690  334,176 
 Increase/(decrease) in contract liabilities   5,806,050  - 
 Increase/(decrease) in lease liabilities   471,078  - 
 Increase/(decrease) in other provisions     67,072    2,447,780 
      6,393,706    2,260,158 

Net cash inflow / (outflow) from operating activities     49,460    1,268,223 
 
22 Reconciliation of liabilities arising from finance activities 

     

2020 As at Change in Cash flows  Non-cash  As at 
 30 June 2019 accounting policy   changes  30 June 2020 

 
 

Borrowings 1,767,574 - (125,736) - 1,641,838 
Lease liabilities - 531,128 (72,896) 12,845 471,078 

  
1,767,574 531,128 (198,633) 

 
12,845 2,112,916 

   

 

2019 As at 
30 June 2018 

Change in 
accounting policy 

Cash flows Non-cash 
changes 

As at 
30 June 2019 

 
Borrowings 1,889,846 - (122,272) - 1,767,574 

 1,889,846 - (122,272) - - 1,767,574 
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23 Changes in accounting policy 
 

During the year ended 30 June 2020, the Council has adopted AASB 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers , AASB 1058 Income of NFP 
Entities and AASB 16 Leases using the modified retrospective (cumulative catch-up) method and therefore the comparative information for the 
year ended 30 June 2019 has not been restated and continues to comply with AASB 111 Construction Contracts , AASB 117 Leases , AASB 
118 Revenue , AASB 1004 Contributions and Associated Accounting Interpretations. 

 
Adjustments on adoption of AASB 15 and AASB 1058 have been taken to retained surplus at 1 July 2019. In adopting AASB 16, the right-of- 
use asset and the lease liabilities as at 1 July 2019 for the lease previously classified as an operating lease were assessed by Council as not 
material therefore, an adjustment as at 1 July 2019 is not considered necessary. 

 
The impact of adopting these standards and associated transition disclosures are provided below: 

 
Revenue standards - AASB 15 and AASB 1058 

 
The following options have been applied on transition to AASB 15 and AASB 1058: 
• Council has not adopted the completed contract expedient and therefore has not excluded revenue which was fully recognised in previous 
years in accordance with the former accounting standards and pronouncements. 
• Council has not retrospectively restated contracts for modifications that occurred before 1 July 2019 unless such contract modifications were 
minor. 

 

Changes in accounting policy on adoption of AASB 15 and AASB 1058 
The changes in accounting policies on adoption of AASB 15 and AASB 1058 are disclosed in Note 3. 

 
Opening contract balances on transition at 1 July 2019 

 
 
 

Contract assets 

 
 

Balance at 
1 July 2019 

$ 

- Under AASB 15   449,720 
Total contract assets   449,720  

 

Contract liabilities 
-Under AASB 15   4,690,851 

Total contract liabilities   4,690,851  
 

 

Comparison of affected financial statements lines between AASB 15 / 1058 and previous revenue standards 
 

The following table shows the amount by which the financial statement line items are affected by the application of AASB 15 and AASB 1058 
as compared to the previous revenue standards. 
Statement of financial position at 30 June 2020 
 Balances per 

Statement of 
Financial 
Position 

Adjustments Carrying amount if 
previous 

standards had 
been applied 

Dr / (Cr) Dr / (Cr) $ 
 
Contract assets 

  $  
1,676,047 

   $  
(1,676,047) 

   
- 

Contract liabilities -current (5,806,050) 5,806,050 - 
Retained surplus   (69,699,088)   (4,130,003)   73,829,091 

   (73,829,091)   -    73,829,091 
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23 Changes in accounting policy (Continued) 
Statement of comprehensive income for the year ended 30 June 2020 

 
Balances per 
Statement of 

Comprehensive 
Income 
Dr / (Cr) 

 
Adjustments 

 
 
 

Dr / (Cr) 

 
Carrying amount if 

previous 
standards had 
been applied 

$ 
  $    $        

Revenue -operating 
Grants (8,350,479) (22,388) (8,372,867) 
Fees and charges - - - 

Revenue -capital (12,075,723) 159,335 (11,916,388) 
Expenses -materials and services   -   -  -  

  (20,426,202)   136,947  (20,289,255) 
   

 
The adjustments above relate to the recognition of contract assets and contract liabilities for revenue streams where the revenue is 
recognised over time rather than on receipt of funding under AASB 1004. 

 

Statement of cash flows for the year ended 30 June 2020 
The adoption of AASB 15 and AASB 1058 has not caused material changes to the Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 30 June 
2020. 

 
Lease standard - AASB 16 
Council as a lessee 
Under the previous lease accounting standard, Council assessed whether leases were operating or finance leases, based on its assessment 
of whether the significant risks and rewards of ownership had been transferred to Council or remained with the lessor. Under AASB 16, there 
is no differentiation between finance and operating leases for the lessee and therefore all leases which meet the definition of a lease are 
recognised on the statement of financial position (except for short-term leases and leases of low-value assets). 

 

Council has used the exception to lease accounting for short-term leases and leases of low-value assets, and the lease expense relating to 
these leases is recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income on a straight- line basis. 

 
Practical expedients used on transition 
AASB 16 includes a number of practical expedients which can be used on transition. Council has used the following 
- Contracts which had previously been assessed as not containing leases under AASB 117 were not re-assessed on transition to AASB 16. 
- Lease liabilities have been discounted at 1 July 2019 using the QTC borrowing rate on existing loans applicable to the Council. 
- Used hindsight to determine the lease term on a contract that contains option to extend or terminate the lease. 

 
Impact of adopting AASB 16 at 1 July 2019 

Council has a recognised right-of-use asset of $502,885 and lease liability of $531,128 at 1 July 2019 for a building lease previously 
classified as an operating lease. 
Council has two pastoral leases amounting to $186,758 which were recognised as right of use assets on 1 July 2019. These leases are 
prepaid and were previously recognised in receivables. 
The Council's incremental borrowing rate applied to lease liabilities at 1 July 2019 was 2.8% based on the Council's existing QTC loans. 

 
24 Events after the reporting period 

 
The global COVID-19 pandemic and the subsequent restrictions imposed by the Commonwealth and Queensland governments have caused 
disruption to business and economic activity. The Commonwealth and Queensland governments implemented bio-security and specific 
access restrictions for remote communities, including the Kowanyama community. The bio-security restrictions were lifted by the 
Commonwealth government from 12 June 2020 and all travel restrictions including entry and quarantine requirements were lifted by the 
Queensland government from 3 July 2020, the latter removing and applying the same provisions as other areas of Queensland. 

 

As at the date of signing these financial statements, given the evolving circumstances of COVID -19, the ongoing impact on Council cannot 
be reliably estimated for future financial periods. This is considered a non-adjusting event for financial reporting and disclosure purposes and, 
as such, has no impact on the amounts reported in these financial statements. 

 

To the best of Council’s knowledge at the date of this financial report, there are no other post balance date events that are likely to have a 
material impact on the financial statements. 

25 Impact of COVID-19 on the financial statements as at 30 June 2020 
 

As a result of the travel restrictions imposed, there has been a decrease in the level of contracts and recoverable works towards the end of 
the 2019/20 financial year. Council experienced challenges in maintaining the specialised trades people required to carry out the contracts 
and recoverable works during the period impacted by travel restrictions. A further contributing factor to the drop in revenue was a delay in the 
supply of construction materials. The decrease in sales has been reflected in the financial statements. It is not possible to accurately quantify 
the decrease due to the inconsistent nature of the contracts and recoverable works. 

There have not been any other significant adverse operational or financial impacts as a result of the COVID-19 pandemic to date and it is 
confirmed that any known impacts have been reflected in the financial statements. 
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26 Correction of errors 
 

Overstatement of expenditure and an understatement of property plant and equipment 
During the current year comprehensive valuation exercise, it has been identified that certain capital works on Council housing assets have 
been incorrectly expensed in prior years. The impact of this error is an overstatement of repairs and maintenance expenditure, an 
understatement of property, plant and equipment and an understatement of capital expenditure as a result of the loss on disposal of assets. 
The work was carried out using revenue received from QBuild (formerly Building & Asset Services of the Department of Housing and Public 
Works). This had previously been treated as recurrent sales revenue. The relating revenue has now been reclassified as capital revenue. The 
adjustments are as follows: 
Reconciliation of restated comparatives as at 30 June 2019 

 

 Previous  Restated 
2019 Correction 2019 

$ $ $ 
Statement of Comprehensive Income    
Income    

Recurrent revenue    

Sales revenue 7,680,704 (3,164,000) 4,516,704 

Total recurrent revenue 17,408,067 (3,164,000) 14,244,067 
 
Capital revenue 

   

Grants, subsidies, contributions and donations 18,106,424 3,164,000 21,270,424 

Total capital revenue 18,106,424 3,164,000 21,270,424 
    

Total income 37,218,390 - 37,218,390 
    

Expenses    

Materials and services (9,190,935) 3,164,000 (6,026,935) 
Total recurrent expenses (27,397,146) 3,164,000 (24,233,146) 
 
Capital expenses 

 
(1,083,780) 

 
(1,582,000) 

 
(2,665,780) 

Total expenses (28,480,927) 1,582,000 (26,898,927) 
    

Net result 8,737,463 1,582,000 10,319,463 
    

Total comprehensive income for the year 11,035,944 1,582,000 12,617,944 
    

 Previous  Restated 
 2019 Correction 2019 
 $ $ $ 
Statement of Financial Position    
Non-current assets    

Property, plant and equipment 142,060,166 1,965,879 144,026,045 
Total non-current assets 147,916,327 1,965,879 149,882,206 
    
Total assets 161,727,873 1,965,879 163,693,752 

    

Net community assets 154,185,719 1,965,879 156,151,598 
    

Community equity    

Retained surplus 76,830,535 1,965,879 78,796,414 

Total community equity 154,185,719 1,965,879 156,151,598 
    

 
Reconciliation of restated balances as at 1 July 2018 

   

 Previous  Restated 
 2018 Correction 1 July 2018 

  $ $ $  
Statement of Financial Position    
Non-current assets    

Property, plant and equipment 130,874,659 383,879 131,258,538 
Total non-current assets 136,622,761 383,879 137,006,640 

    

Total assets 148,032,245 383,879 148,416,124 
    

Net community assets 143,149,774 383,879 143,533,653 
    

Community equity 
Retained surplus 

 
 

68,093,070 

 
 

383,879 

 
 

68,476,949 
Total community equity 143,149,774 383,879 143,533,653 
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27 Transactions with related parties 
 

(a) Transactions with key management personnel (KMP) 
 

KMP include the Mayor, Councillors, Council's Chief Executive Officer and some executive management. The compensation 
paid to KMP comprises: 

 

Transactions with KMP 2020 2019 
$ $ 

Short-term employee benefits 1,106,830 1,116,677 
Post-employment benefits 77,181 84,561 
Termination benefits 11,538 82,308 
Total 1,195,549 1,283,546 

 
Detailed remuneration disclosures are provided in the annual report. 

 
(b) Transactions with other related parties 

 

Other related parties include the close family members of KMP and any entities controlled or jointly controlled by KMP or their 
close family members. Close family members include a spouse, child and dependent of a KMP or their spouse. 

 

Details of transactions between Council and other related parties are disclosed below: 
 

Details of Transaction Additional 
information 

2020 2019 
$ $ 

Sale of goods and services to related parties 27(b)(i) 17,236 6,831 
Employee expenses of close family members of KMP 27(b)(ii) 166,329 146,736 
Purchase of materials and services from close family member 
and controlled entities of KMP 

 
27(b)(iii) 

 
224,936 

 
259,511 

Rental and accommodation revenue from entities controlled by 
related party 27(b)(v) 

 
80,597 

 
237,261 

 
(i) Sales generated from key management personnel, close family member of KMP and jointly controlled entity of KMP were on 
an arm’s length basis in accordance with Council’s standard terms and conditions 

 
(ii) All close family members of key management personnel were employed through an arm’s length process. They are paid in 
accordance with the Award for the job they perform. 

 
The Council employs 147 (2019: 133) staff of which only 5 (2019: 3) are close family members of key management personnel. 

 

(iii) The Council purchased materials and services from a close family member of key management personnel. All purchases 
were at arm’s length and were in the normal course of Council operations. 

 

(iv) Kowanyama Sport and Recreations Association Inc. was charged for rent on an arm's length basis and in accordance with 
the Council's schedule of fees and charges,the lease or by Council resolution. 

 
(v) Rental and accommodation generated from entities controlled by a related party were at arm's length and in accordance with 
standard terms and conditions. 
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27 Transactions with related parties (Continued) 
(c) Outstanding balances 

 
The following balances are outstanding at the end of the reporting period in relation to transactions with related parties: 

 
Year ended 30 June 2020 

 
 

Receivables Amounts owed by 
KMP 

Amounts owed by 
entities controlled 

by KMP 

Amounts owed by 
close family 

member of KMP 
 $ $ $ 
Current 40 8,990 - 
Past due 31-60 days - 183,775 - 
More than 90 days overdue 250 - - 
Total Owing 290 192,765 - 

 
Year ended 30 June 2019 

 

 
Receivables Amounts owed by 

KMP 
Amounts owed by 
entities controlled 

by KMP 

Amounts owed by 
close family 

member of KMP 
 $ $ $ 
Current - 11,536 2,650 
Past due 31-60 days - 9,533 1,381 
More than 90 days overdue 2,572 159,884 - 
Total Owing 2,572 180,953 4,031 

 
 

Year ended 30 June 2020 
 

 
Payables Amounts owed to 

KMP 
Amounts owed to 

entity controlled by 
KMP 

Amounts owed to 
close family 

member of KMP 
 $ $ $ 
Current - - - 
Past due 31-60 days - - - 
Past due 61-90 days - - - 
More than 90 days overdue 262 688 - 
Total Owing 262 688 - 

 
Year ended 30 June 2019 

 

 
Payables Amounts owed to 

KMP 
Amounts owed to 

entity controlled by 
KMP 

Amounts owed to 
close family 

member of KMP 
 $ $ $ 
Current - - 56,257 
Past due 31-60 days - - - 
Past due 61-90 days - - - 
More than 90 days overdue - - 2,515 
Total Owing - - 58,772 

 
(d) Loans and guarantees to/from related parties 

 
Council does not make loans to or receive loans from related parties. No guarantees have been provided. 

 
(e) Commitments to/from other related parties 

 
Council does not have any commitment to/from related parties. 

 

(f) Transactions with related parties that have not been disclosed 

 
The majority of the entities and people that are related parties of Council live and operate within the Kowanyama community. 
Therefore, on a regular basis ordinary citizen transactions occur between Council and its related parties. The payment by 
community residents of fees and charges are considered to be ordinary citizen transactions. 

 
 

Council has not included these types of transaction in its disclosure as they are made on the same terms and conditions 
available to the general public. 
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28 Financial instruments and financial risk management 

 
Financial assets and financial liabilities 

Kowanyama Aboriginal Shire Council has exposure to the following risks arising from financial instruments: 
- credit risk 
- liquidity risk 
- market risk 

 
Risk management framework 
Kowanyama Aboriginal Shire Council is responsible for the establishment and oversight of the risk management framework, together 
with developing and monitoring risk management policies. 

 

Council's audit and risk committee approves policies for overall risk management, as well as specifically for managing credit, liquidity 
and market risk. 

 

The Council's risk management policies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced, to set appropriate limits and controls 
and to monitor these risks and adherence against limits. The Council aims to manage volatility to minimise potential adverse effects on 
the financial performance of the Council. 

 
The Council's audit and risk committee oversees how management monitors compliance with the Council's risk management policies 
and procedures, and reviews the adequacy of the risk managements framework in relation to the risks faced by the Council. The 
Council audit and risk committee is assisted in its oversight role by internal audit. Internal audit undertakes both regular and ad hoc 
reviews of risk management controls and procedures, the results of which are reported to the audit and risk committee. 

 

Kowanyama Aboriginal Shire Council does not enter into derivatives. 
 

Credit risk 
Credit risk is the risk of financial loss if a counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations. These 
obligations arise principally from the Council's investments and receivables from customers. 

 
Exposure to credit risk is managed through regular analysis of credit counterparty ability to meet payment obligations. The carrying 
amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure. 

 
No collateral is held as security relating to the financial assets held by Kowanyama Aboriginal Shire Council. 

 
The carrying amounts of financial assets at the end of the reporting period represent the maximum exposure to credit risk for the 
Council 

 
Cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents are held with Australian financial institutions - Commonwealth Bank and National Australia Bank, which are 
rated AA- by rating agency S&P, Aa3 by Moodys' and A+ by Fitch, whilst not capital guaranteed, the likelihood of a credit failure is 
assessed as remote. 

 

Other financial assets 
Other investments: Finance leases are held with the State of Queensland and the likelihood of a credit failure is assessed as remote. 

 
Trade and other receivables 
Council assesses the credit risk before providing goods or services and applies normal business credit protection procedures to 
minimise the risk. 

 

By the nature of the Council's operations, there is some geographical concentration of risk in the Council's area of Far North 
Queensland. 
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28 Financial instruments and financial risk management (Continued) 

The Council does not require collateral in respect of trade and other receivables. 
 

At 30 June 2020, the exposure to credit risk for trade receivables by type of counterparty was as follows: 
 

2020 2019 
 

 $ $ 
Corporate organisations 100,525 301,850 
GST recoverable 27,830 - 
Community organisations 316,059 266,130 
Other - Government 230,390 1,406,842 
Total 674,805 1,974,822 

   

 
A summary of the Council's exposure to credit risk for trade receivables is as follows: 

 
2020 

Not credit- 
impaired 

 
Credit- 

impaired 

2019 
Not credit- 
impaired 

 
Credit- 

impaired 
$ $ $  

Not past due 313,354 - 1,551,226 13,339 
Past due 31-60 days 19,302 - 96,188 11,389 
Past due 61-90 days 13,857 - 41,173 10,289 
More than 90 days 93,469 234,824 40,852 210,367 
Total gross carrying amount 439,981 234,824 1,729,439 245,384 
Loss allowance - (234,824) - (245,384) 

439,981 - 1,729,439 - 
    

 
Expected credit loss assessment 

   

 
Council uses a provision matrix to measure the expected credit losses of all other trade receivables from individual customers, which 
comprise a large number of small balances. Council believes the impact to be not material due to the current impairments of the trade 
receivables balance. 
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28 Financial instruments and financial risk management (Continued) 
 

Liquidity risk 
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Council will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its financial liabilities that are 
settled by delivering cash or another financial asset. 

 
 

The Council's approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will have sufficient liquidity to meet its labilities 
when they are due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the 
Council's reputation 

 
Exposure to liquidity risk 
Kowanyama Aboriginal Shire Council is exposed to liquidity risk through its normal course of business and through its borrowings with 
QTC. 

 
The Council manages its exposure to liquidity risk by maintaining sufficient cash deposits and undrawn facilities, both short and long 
term, to cater for unexpected volatility in cash flows. These facilities are disclosed in note 17. 

 
 2020 

$ 
2019 

$ 

Overdraft - QTC working capital facility 2,150,000 2,150,000 

Available at 30 June 508,163 382,426 
 

The following table sets out the liquidity risk in relation to financial liabilities excluding lease liabilities for 2020 held by the Council. It 
represents the remaining contractual cashflows (principal and interest) of financial liabilities at the end of the reporting period, excluding 
the impact of netting agreements: 

 
0 to 1 year 1 to 5 years Over 5 years Total 

contractual 
cash flows 

Carrying 
amount 

$ $ $ $ $ 
2020 
Trade and other payables 2,126,991 - - 2,126,991 2,126,991 

 

Loans - QTC 173,769 695,074 1,042,612 1,911,455 1,641,837 
 2,300,760 695,074 1,042,612 4,038,446 3,768,829 
      

2019 
Trade and other payables 

 
2,208,257 

 
- 

 
- 

 
2,208,257 

 
2,208,257 

Loans - QTC 173,769 695,074 1,216,380 2,085,223 1,767,574 
 2,382,026 695,074 1,216,380 4,293,481 3,975,831 
      

 
The outflows in the above table are not expected to occur significantly earlier or for significantly different amounts than indicated in the 
table. 

 
Market risk 
Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as interest rates, will affect the Council's income or the value of its holdings 
of financial instruments. 

 
Interest rate risk 
Kowanyama Aboriginal Shire Council is exposed to interest rate risk through investments and borrowings with QTC,National Australia 
Bank and Commonwealth Bank Australia. 

 
The Council has access to a mix of variable and fixed rate funding options through QTC so that interest rate risk exposure can be 
minimised. 

 
Sensitivity 
Sensitivity to interest rate movements is shown for variable financial assets and liabilities based on the carrying amount at reporting 
date. 

 

The Council does not account for any fixed-rate financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, therefore a 
change in interest rates at the reporting date would not affect profit or loss. 
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28 Financial instruments and financial risk management (Continued) 

The following interest rate sensitivity analysis depicts what effect a reasonably possible change in interest rates (assumed to be 1%) 
would have on the result and equity, based on the carrying values at the end of the reporting period. The calculation assumes that the 
change in interest rates would be held constant over the period. 

 
Net carrying 

amount 
Effect on Net Result Effect on Equity 

 
1% increase 1% decrease 1% increase 1% decrease 

$ $ $ $ $ 
 

2020 
Cash at bank 

 
8,933,832 

 
89,338 

 
(89,338) 

 
89,338 

 
(89,338) 

QTC cash fund 1,452 15 (15) 15 (15) 
Loans - QTC (1,641,837) (16,418) 16,418 (16,418) 16,418 
Net total  72,934 (72,934) 72,934 (72,934) 

      

 
Net carrying 

amount 
Effect on Net Result Effect on Equity 

1% increase 1% decrease 1% increase 1% decrease 
$ $ $ $ $ 

 

2019  

Cash at bank 10,466,159 104,662 (104,662) 104,662 (104,662) 
QTC cash fund 1,429 14 (14) 14 (14) 
Loans - QTC (1,767,574) (17,676) 17,676 (17,676) 17,676 
Net total  87,000 (87,000) 87,000 (87,000) 

      

 
Fair value 
The fair value of trade and other receivables and payables is assumed to approximate the value of the original transaction, less any 
allowance for impairment. 

 

The fair value of borrowings with QTC is based on the market value of debt outstanding. The market value of a debt obligation is the 
discounted value of future cash flows based on prevailing market rates and represents the amount required to be repaid if this was to 
occur at balance date. The market value of debt is provided by QTC and is disclosed in Note 17. 

 
QTC applies a book rate approach in the management of debt and interest rate risk, to limit the impact of market value movements to 
clients' cost of funding. The book value represents the carrying value based on amortised cost using the effective interest method. 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 

 
To the Councillors of Kowanyama Aboriginal Shire Council 

 
Report on the audit of the financial report 
Opinion 

I have audited the accompanying financial report of Kowanyama Aboriginal Shire Council 
(the council). 

In my opinion, the financial report: 

a) gives a true and fair view of the council’s financial position as at 30 June 2020, and of 
its financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended 

b) complies with the Local Government Act 2009, the Local Government Regulation 2012 
and Australian Accounting Standards. 

The financial report comprises the statement of financial position as at 30 June 2020, the 
statement of comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash 
flows for the year then ended, notes to the financial statements including significant 
accounting policies and other explanatory information, and the certificate given by the Mayor 
and Chief Executive Officer. 

Basis for opinion 

I conducted my audit in accordance with the Auditor-General Auditing Standards, which 
incorporate the Australian Auditing Standards. My responsibilities under those standards are 
further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial report section of 
my report. 

I am independent of the council in accordance with the ethical requirements of the 
Accounting Professional and Ethical Standards Board’s APES 110 Code of Ethics for 
Professional Accountants (the Code) that are relevant to my audit of the financial report in 
Australia. I have also fulfilled my other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code 
and the Auditor-General Auditing Standards. 

I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
basis for my opinion. 

Other information 

Other information comprises financial and non-financial information (other than the audited 
financial report) in an entity’s annual report. 

At the date of this auditor’s report, the available other information in Kowanyama Aboriginal 
Shire Council’s annual report for the year ended 30 June 2020 was the current year financial 
sustainability statement and long-term financial sustainability statement. 

The councillors are responsible for the other information. 

My opinion on the financial report does not cover the other information and accordingly I do 
not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. However, as required by the Local 
Government Regulation 2012, I have expressed a separate opinion on the current year 
financial sustainability statement. 
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In connection with my audit of the financial report, my responsibility is to read the other 
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent 
with the financial report and my knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be 
materially misstated. 

If, based on the work I have performed, I conclude that there is a material misstatement of 
this information, I am required to report that fact. I have nothing to report in this regard. 

Responsibilities of the councillors for the financial report 

The councillors are responsible for the preparation of the financial report that gives a true 
and fair view in accordance with the Local Government Act 2009, the Local Government 
Regulation 2012 and Australian Accounting Standards, and for such internal control as the 
councillors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of the financial report that is 
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

The councillors are also responsible for assessing the council's ability to continue as a going 
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters relating to going concern and using the going 
concern basis of accounting unless it is intended to abolish the council or to otherwise cease 
operations. 

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial report 

My objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial report as a 
whole is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an 
auditor’s report that includes my opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, 
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with the Australian Auditing 
Standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise 
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in aggregate, they could 
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of 
this financial report. 

As part of an audit in accordance with the Australian Auditing Standards, I exercise 
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. I also: 

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial report, whether 
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, 
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my 
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher 
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional 
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for expressing an opinion 
on the effectiveness of the council's internal control. 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the council. 
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• Conclude on the appropriateness of the council's use of the going concern basis of 

accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty 
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the council's 
ability to continue as a going concern. If I conclude that a material uncertainty exists, I 
am required to draw attention in my auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the 
financial report or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify my opinion. I base my 
conclusions on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of my auditor’s report. 
However, future events or conditions may cause the council to cease to continue as a 
going concern. 

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial report, including 
the disclosures, and whether the financial report represents the underlying transactions 
and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

I communicate with the council regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and 
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in 
internal control that I identify during my audit. 

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements 
In accordance with s.40 of the Auditor-General Act 2009, for the year ended 30 June 2020: 

a) I received all the information and explanations I required. 

b) In my opinion, the prescribed requirements in relation to the establishment and keeping 
of accounts were complied with in all material respects. 

 
 

3 December 2020 
 
 

Sri Narasimhan Queensland Audit Office 
as delegate of the Auditor-General Brisbane 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 

 
To the Councillors of Kowanyama Aboriginal Shire Council 

 
Report on the current year financial sustainability statement 
Opinion 
I have audited the accompanying current year financial sustainability statement of 
Kowanyama Aboriginal Shire Council (the council) for the year ended 30 June 2020, 
comprising the statement, explanatory notes, and the certificate of accuracy given by the 
Mayor and the Chief Executive Officer. 

In accordance with section 212 of the Local Government Regulation 2012, in my opinion, in 
all material respects, the current year financial sustainability statement of Kowanyama 
Aboriginal Shire Council for the year ended 30 June 2020 has been accurately calculated. 

Basis of opinion 

I conducted my audit in accordance with the Auditor-General Auditing Standards, which 
incorporate the Australian Auditing Standards. My responsibilities under those standards are 
further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the current year financial 
sustainability statement section of my report. 

I am independent of the council in accordance with the ethical requirements of the 
Accounting Professional and Ethical Standards Board APES 110 Code of Ethics for 
Professional Accountants (the Code) that are relevant to my audit of the statement in 
Australia. I have also fulfilled my other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code 
and the Auditor-General Auditing Standards. 

I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
basis for my opinion. 

Emphasis of matter – basis of accounting 

I draw attention to Note 1 which describes the basis of accounting. The current year financial 
sustainability statement has been prepared in accordance with the Financial Management 
(Sustainability) Guideline 2013 for the purpose of fulfilling the council’s reporting 
responsibilities under the Local Government Regulation 2012. As a result, the statement may 
not be suitable for another purpose. My opinion is not modified in respect of this matter. 

Other Information 

Other information comprises financial and non-financial information (other than the audited 
financial report) in an entity’s annual report. 

At the date of this auditor’s report, the available other information in Kowanyama Aboriginal 
Shire Council’s annual report for the year ended 30 June 2020 was the general purpose 
financial statements and long-term financial sustainability statement. 

The councillors are responsible for the other information. 
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My opinion on the current year financial sustainability statement does not cover the other 
information and accordingly I do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 
However, as required by the Local Government Regulation 2012, I have expressed a 
separate opinion on the general purpose financial report. 

In connection with my audit of the financial report, my responsibility is to read the other 
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent 
with the financial report and my knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be 
materially misstated. 

If, based on the work I have performed, I conclude that there is a material misstatement of 
this information, I am required to report that fact. I have nothing to report in this regard. 

Responsibilities of the councillors for the current year financial sustainability 
statement 

The councillors are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the current year 
financial sustainability statement in accordance with the Local Government Regulation 2012. 
The councillors’ responsibility also includes such internal control as the councillors determine 
is necessary to enable the preparation and fair presentation of the statement that is 
accurately calculated and is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the current year financial sustainability 
statement 

My objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the current year financial 
sustainability statement as a whole is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud 
or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes my opinion. Reasonable assurance is a 
high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with 
the Australian Auditing Standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. 
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in 
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of 
users taken on the basis of this statement. 

My responsibility does not extend to forming an opinion on the appropriateness or relevance 
of the reported ratios, nor on the council’s future sustainability. 

As part of an audit in accordance with the Australian Auditing Standards, I exercise 
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. I also: 

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the statement, whether due to 
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and 
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my 
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher 
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional 
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of 
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the council’s internal control. 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the council. 
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• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the statement, including the 

disclosures, and whether the statement represents the underlying transactions and 
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

I communicate with the council regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing 
of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal 
control that I identify during my audit. 

 
 

3 December 2020 
 
 

Sri Narasimhan Queensland Audit Office 
as delegate of the Auditor-General Brisbane 
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Kowanyama Aboriginal Shire Council 
Long-Term Financial Sustainability Statement (unaudited) 
For the year ended as at 30 June 2020 

 
 
 

Projected for the years ended 

Measures of Financial 
Sustainability 

Measure Target Actuals at 

30 June 

30 June 

2021 

30 June 

2022 

30 June 

2023 

30 June 

2024 

30 June 

2025 

30 June 

2026 

30 June 

2027 

30 June 

2028 

30 June 

2029 

30 June 

2030 

 
Council 

  2020  

 
Operating surplus ratio Net result divided by total operating 

revenue 
Between 0% 
and 10% 

(62.0%) (38.4%) (43.2%) (42.6%) (41.6%) (38.3%) (36.2%) (36.2%) (36.2%) (36.3%) (36.6%) 

Asset sustainability ratio Capital expenditure on the greater than 108.0% 139.6% 31.6% 31.2% 31.3% 31.8% 32.6% 31.9% 31.2% 30.5% 29.7% 
 replacement of assets (renewals) 90%            

 
Net financial liabilities ratio 

divided by depreciation expense. 
Total liabilities less current assets 

 
not greater 

 
9.0% 

 
6.9% 

 
5.7% 

 
4.5% 

 
3.3% 

 
2.1% 

 
0.8% 

 
(0.4%) 

 
(1.6%) 

 
(2.9%) 

 
(4.9%) 

 divided by total operating revenue than 60%            

 
Kowanyama Aboriginal Shire Council's Financial Management Strategy 

 
Council measures revenue and expenditure trends over time as a guide to future requirements and to make decisions about the efficient allocation of resources to ensure the most effective provision of 

services. Council's financial management strategy is prudent and that its long-term financial forecast shows a sound financial position but both are dependent on on-going State and Commonwealth 

Government support. Provided this support is ongoing council will be able to meet the community’s current and future needs. 

 
Certificate of Accuracy 
For the long-term financial sustainability statement prepared as at 30 June 2020 

 
This long-term financial sustainability statement has been prepared pursuant to Section 178 of the Local Government Regulation 2012 (the regulation). 

 
 

In accordance with Section 212(5) of the Regulation we certify that this long-term financial sustainability statement has been accurately calculated. 

Robert Sands 
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